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Introduction 

I feel that I had better start this article with a bit of an introduction, in order to explain to you 
what has promoted me to write it. As you all probably know, I have always been interested in 
history, particularly Jewish history, and of course family history-genealogy. During the past 
ten years I have researched the places in Eastern Europe, where our family originated, and 
written articles1 about them. When I was a young girl I used to enjoy hearing the stories that 
my Maternal Grandparents told about their past, and afterwards the little tidbits that my 
Mother unintentionally (?) added on. At a certain time, I understood that it was my 
Grandmother who kept the family together. Then, later on, I understood that it was my Mother 
who had done this. She was even capable of doing so, by way of letters, after my parents 
came on Aliyah2. Now, I feel that the time has come for me to write up everything that I know 
about our family. As a student of history, I cannot say that our family is/was a great or 
important family. The only really important person from our family was my Grandmother’s 
brother, the British Jewish author Louis Golding; but I think that today there are quite a few 
important people in our family. All I can say is that this family is important to me, because it is 
my family. 
 
At first I had no idea of how to organize this article. I simply did not know where to start. Then, 
per chance a friend of ours, Dr. Ida Selavan Schwarcz, about in article that she had written 
about her Mother. After reading her wonderful article, which gave much honor to her Mother 
and her family, I had an idea of how I should build this article.3 
 
When I first began to think about writing this article I wrote all the cousins who I am in contact 
with to ask for information. I thank all of you who so kindly sent information. I also must 
specially thank our cousin JuddE. Posner4, who made a “Family Tree”,5 quite a few years 
ago.  His Mother, Nettie Posner, also had a wealth of family information in her head and past 
it on, with love, to him. It is quite interesting to see the continuation of private names in the 
family, as they proceed on this “Tree”. 
 
Due to my email correspondence with cousin Janine Botty, I decided to add photographs. I 
enjoyed looking through old albums to find appropriate ones. I enjoyed even more so, how so 
many of you sent me old and new photographs of your family. I thank you all so much for your 
cooperation. 
 

                                                
1 Here is a list of the articles that I have written:  

Articles and Websites 
Research on Cherkassy    http://www.jewishgen.org/Ukraine/Kiev/chergassy/cherkassy_3.htm     31 pps. 
Rezekne: The History of the Jews in the City of My Roots 
http://www.shtetlinks.jewishgen.org/Ludza/Rezekne/histories/Rezekne/History_Rezekne.html                                                                                        
22 pps. 
The Connection Between Rezekne and Ein Zaitim      
http://www.shtetlinks.jewishgen.org/Ludza/Rezekne/EinZaitim/EZ_enter.html 
17 pps. 
Sveksna:  Our Town      www.jewishgen.org/LITVAK/HTML/OnlineJournals/sveksna.htm 50 pps.  
(My original article contains a synopsis of the history of the Jews of Lithuania) 60 pps. 
Vitebsk                 http://www.jewishgen.org/Belarus/newsletter/MyVitebsk.htm 
38 pps. 
Pictures Of The Vitebsk That Was http://www.jewishgen.org/belarus/newsletter/MyVitebsk_2nd.htm                           
28 pps. 
Pictures of Sveksna     (not on the web yet)                                            26 pps. 
The Rechtschafner Family    (not on the web yet) 95 pps. 
Vitebsk website:  http://www.shtetlinks.jewishgen.org/Vitsyebsk/  
The BUND in Vitebsk    http://www.shtetlinks.jewishgen.org/Vitsyebsk/bund.html                  19 pps. 
My Father Oscar Herschman (ZL) and the Story of his Family  http://www.shtetlinks.jewishgen.org/Vitsyebsk/  
scroll down Family Stories scroll down H(G)erschman scroll downThe Story of Oscar Herschman and his Family     
23pps                   
2 en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Aliyah 
3 ISS- 24/3/11 
4 JuddE once wrote me that he had made contact with most of the people who were then still alive; but after a while 
this connection stopped. My memory 
5 If you are interested in a copy of the “Family Tree”, I will be happy to forward it on. 

http://www.jewishgen.org/Ukraine/Kiev/chergassy/cherkassy_3.htm�
http://www.shtetlinks.jewishgen.org/Ludza/Rezekne/EinZaitim/EZ_enter.html�
http://www.jewishgen.org/LITVAK/HTML/OnlineJournals/sveksna.htm50�
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My correspondence with cousins Diane Pomerantz, Valerie Rosenhoch and Jack and Danny 
Marcus caused them to find a few documents. Therefore, I decided to add these documents. 
 
Per chance, I acquired quite a bit of information6 about Jack Golding, my Grandmother's 
youngest brother who was killed, as a British soldier in World War I. Therefore I feel good that 
I have done something for his memory and have decided to also dedicate this article to his 
memory. 
 
I have much interesting (and perhaps useful) information in the footnotes, so I really suggest 
that you read them. One of the reasons that I did so, is because Martin Golding once told me 
that sometimes he reads only footnotes7. 
 
Please understand that this article is about my family, the family that I know and love. What I 
write is what I know and what I feel. This is not a real historical document; but it is a 
composition about my family as seen through my eyes. 
 
I beg your pardon if I have written something that you do not agree with. Please contact me 
and I will change it. 
 
I have used as many biography references as possible from the internet; for I think that this 
may make it easier for you to refer to them, than would I use books that you may not have 
easy access to. 
 
I will now start to tell you about the background of the family; beginning as far back as I can, 
according to the information that I have acquired from others, or that I myself remember 
hearing… 
 
Thank you for reading this. 
Esther Anne (Herschman) Rechtschafner 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

                                                
6 I sincerely thank Rosemary Eshel-RE (independent.academia.edu/RosemaryEshel), who helped me find this 
information and other information about Manchester Jewry.   

 
7 My memory 
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Golding Family Background 

 
I am beginning with the history of the Golding Family for I have much information about this 
thanks to JuddE’s  “Family Tree”. 
 
My Mother’s Great-great Grandparents were Yehuda Reyentowitz and Necha Tsirilstein. 
Their oldest son Monash Reyentowitz  (@1825-1914) married Rachel.   
They had a daughter Necha8 Reyentowitz who was married to Philip Golding9. He was a 
struggling magid (teacher of Jewish subjects)10, a teacher and lecturer and a very religious 
man. 11 He was a very strict person and pretty harsh to the children.12 Yiddish was the family 
language. The family lived in Cherkassy. It is quite possible that the family also lived 
previously in Cherkassy13, Ukraine.  
 
Necha Reyentowitz died in about 1890, when my Grandmother was about 8 years old. When 
I asked her about her Mother, she told me about a Passover, which they wanted to celebrate 
in the traditional way; but were forced to do otherwise.  They all had to stay in their house and 
be sure to be under the window level. The windows and/ or shutters (or whatever they had, 
had to be closed). I asked her if she couldn’t run outside to tell something to a girlfriend. She 
looked at me, as if to say that it was obvious that I could not understand, and said that it 
seemed impossible for her to cause me to understand what had happened. I asked what 
about their Sedarim14. She said that what was important was to stay alive, that they lived 
through their own “Exodus from Egypt”. Therefore I think that this was evidently a pogrom, 
andwas when her Mother was killed.  
 
Her Father15 remarried to a woman whose name was Etta16.17 Etta had 2 daughters, who 
were about the age of my Grandmother. The children were all brought up together and related 
to each other as siblings. My contact and feelings towards Lena's Grandchildren are the same 
as to all of my other cousins. I was probably a teenager when I understood that not all of my 
relatives were actually blood-relatives. 
 
The family immigrated to Manchester18, England in about 185. They brought their samovar19, 
candlesticks, wine cups,20 and bedding with them from Cherkassy21.22 They settled in the 
Cheetham Hill area, in Redbank.23 Soon afterwards they moved to Strangeways. 24At one 

                                                
8 Please note how the name Necha re-appears many ties in the “Family Tree”. I believe the youngest one with this 
name is my granddaughter Avital Neta who is now 17 years old. There may be others.   
9 My Mother said that the family name was originally GOLDIN; but was changed to GOLDING by an immigration clerk 
in England, upon their arrival there. My memory 
10 www.bookrags.com/tandf/golding-louis-tf/ - United States 
11 DP- 6/2/11. See ft. 14. Apparently Louis Golding  (and others of us) inherited the love for reading, the spoken and 
the  written word from him. WK. pps. 8-11. 
12 DP- 6/2/11 Diane Pomerantz never heard that directly from her grandfather Abe but rather from her Uncle Philip 
who heard it from his father Abe and from Louis.  
13 en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Cherkasy;  
www.jewishgen.org/ukraine/towns-gubernias/kiev/chergassy-research.pdf. I wrote this article because of my interest 
in my family history.  
14 en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Passover_Seder 
15 Her Louis had a particularly difficult relationship with his father. Uncle Abe’s son Uncle Philip (Philip Matthew) was 
named for his grandfather, as was Martin Philip Golding who is at Duke University. DP- 6/5/11) My cousin Mark Philip 
(my Uncle Lionel’s son) was also named after him. My memory 
16 Her Father was a landowner. He possessed vines, an orchard and a wine-cellar. WK, p. 2 
17 Yetta Goodhut VSR- 25/8/11 Birth cerificate 
18 Summary on Manchester Jewry: EJ, V. 11, pps.858-60  
19 It was left to Rita Golding Pomerantz by her uncle Louis Golding when he died in 1959 (?) It has a few dents. Diane 
Pomerantz’ daughter Jane ,and as a child, named it "Sammy the Samovar:"  DP- 6/2/11  
20 I believe that these are the 4 wine cups which I now have here in our house. 
21 It is located on the Dnieper River. WK, p. 1 
22 WK, p. 1 
23 WK, p. 1; My memory from my mother's stories. 
24 They lived on Harris street, on the River Irwell. It is possible that the family thought themselves above living in a 
poor neighborhood, since the Father was a scholar of rare distinction and the Mother a daughter of a landowner. WK; 
p.2. Later on they moved again to Howard Street. WK, p.8 

http://www.jewishgen.org/ukraine/towns-gubernias/kiev/chergassy-research.pdf�
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time it was hard for me to believe; but when the family came to England, they could have 
been classified as poor simple Jewish people25 (I thought of my family as very special Jewish 
people.) My cousin Jackie once wrote an article about his Father’s family. He wrote this as 
background material. I didn’t want to accept it as the truth. However, I know from one of Uncle 
Louis’ books, and from hearing this from my Mother, that there was a time that they took in 
washing to make a living. 
 
Necha and Philip Golding had 3 children: 
  
Julius- Jewish name- Judah (1878-1932). He married Annie Shimm26 in 1902. She was his 
mother's cousin. He came with the family to England, in about 189527. He stayed there for a 
short time- about a few years. Then he went to the USA at about the turn of the century. He 
married Annie Shimm28 in New York in 1902. He worked as a furrier.29 They lived in Far 
Rockaway, New York. They had 4 children: 

1. Annette30 (Nettie) Golding (1903-1983) married Murray Posner31 (1902-1970) in 
1929. They lived in a very nice apartment house, which was situated in a garden in Far 
Rockaway.32 They had 2 children: 
  1) Charlotte Lucille (1930) married (George) David Hirshfeld in 1950. They 
have 2 daughters: 
   1-Ann Beth (1954) married Mitchell Bruce Levine (1952) in 1977. 
They have 1 daughter: 
    1, Amy Frances (1984) 
   2- Susan Rita (1958) married Ernest John Alvino (1953) in 1983. 
  2) Judd Edward [JuddE] (1938) He received a good Jewish education. He 
worked with people with hearing problems for many years. He was into folk dancing. He made 
the fabulous "Family Tree”, which so many family members have so much enjoyed, and 
which .has helped me so much in this article.33  

2. Sidney Golding (1905-195734) married Mildred Lewis (1908-1996) in 1929. They 
had 2 children: 

 1) Martin Golding35 (1930) married Naomi Holtzman36 (1930). Martin is 
Professor of Jurist Prudence. He taught at Columbia University; but left there, due to the 
student rioting37 and John Jay College of Criminal Justice in New York City. He then moved to 
Duke University38. He lectures all over the world. He and his family spent a year in Israel39. He 
is a religious man. They have 3 children:   

1- Shulamith (1956) married Jonathan Klein. They live in Atlanta, 
Georgia. She is the Chief Risk Officer for Emory University and Emory 

                                                
25 EB 
26 Her parents were Ida Tsilstein (1854-1937) and Louis Shimm (1856-1932). Ida was the sister of Monash 
Reynowitz. Therefore he married his Grandfather's niece. It is interesting that Ida is the only one to have her other's 
maiden name as her family name. All of this can be checked on JuddE's "Family Tree".  
27 This can be understood for Abey was born in Cherkassy in 1903, and came to England at he age of 14 months; 
and Louis was born in Manchester in 1895. See: The Golding Family, p.  
 
28 Annie Shimm (1880-1952 [New York]) Here is what JRC wrote about her Grandmother "As far as Grandma Annie, 
I was 10 when she passed away.  She lived with us in Clintondale for many years, but I was really too young to 
realize the stories and facts would one day be so important.  She was the sweetest and most loving grandmother 
anyone could ever have, I still miss her.  All I really know that while Grandpa Julius was alive they lived in Far 
Rockaway, NY.  I do know that Grandma Annie died from a melanoma (a malignant tumor 
www.cancer.gov/cancertopics/wyntk/skin/page1]) on the bottom of her foot. JRC- 2/5/11 
29 MG- 13/2/2011 
30 My Mother told me "Nettie" was then considered only a nickname in America. My memory 
31 He was a very warm person. He played with me when I was little. I remember him trying to teach me 
to play "poker" with matchsticks. My memory. 
32 My Memory. 
33 See Introduction, p.; Appendix 3- Golding Tree, p. ; Appendix 4- Golding List , p. . 
34 Sydney was born in New York City on June 3rd, 1905. In the early 1940s he went to Arizona for health reasons. In 
late 1940s he moved to Los Angeles, where he died in January 13, 1956. MG- 31/1/2011 
35 http://fds.duke.edu/db/aas/Philosophy/faculty/mgolding 
36 Naomi's Father was a Yiddishist. My Father said that he was a scholar of the Yiddish language. My memory 
37 www.wikicu.com/1968_protests 
38 www.duke/edu 
39 This was in about 1971. He was a visiting professor in Bar-Ilan (www1.biu.ac.il/).  My husband Mordechai said that 
if he would have remained, he would be a great man in Israel today. My Memory. 
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Healthcare.40 She was the first woman president of the Orthodox 
congregation there.41 

2- Belinda (1958) married Victor Schwartz (1955) in 1979. She is a 
lawyer.42   He is a psychiatrist. They have 2 sons43: 

 1, Max (1987) 
 2, Jake (1990).  
3- Joshua Golding (1961) married Ayala Pollak in 1991. Josh is a Dr. 

or the Phiosophy of Religion at Bellarmine University44. Ayala45 is a 
Employment Law lawyer. They live in Louisville, Kentucky.46 They spent a 
year in Israel recently.47 They have 5 children: 

 1, Rafael Judah48 (1992) 
2, Rivka Rebecca(1994) 
3, Samuel Benjamin (1997) 
4, Nathaniel William (2000) 
5, Vanessa Michelle (2003) 

 2) Judith (1935) married Arnold Freedman (1933-1989) in 1935. She married 
again to Mel Eisenberg in 2000. Judith and Arnold had 4 children: 

  1- Susan (1957) married Greg Ambers 
  2- Steven (1961) 

3- Edward (1967) married Lisa Lightner in 1994. They had 2 sons: 
 1, Jake Arnold (1999) 
 2, Jordan Ashleigh (2002) 
4- Mark (1971) married Jennifer Pofsky in 1998. They had 2 children: 
 1, Emily Anne (2002) 
 2, Jonathan Evan (2005) 

3. George Golding (1913-1950) married Celia Fleder (1916-    ) in 1938. George went 
to St John's College49 in Brooklyn.  They lived in the south – Norfolk, Virginia, after their 
marriage. They then had a retail furniture store.50 They had 3 daughters:51 

 1) Judith  Barbara Golding (1941-1973) married Ronn Zedd in 1962. They 
had 2 sons:  

  1- Gordon Zedd (1965) 
  2- BartonZedd (1967) married Dana Crowe. They had 3 sons: 
   1, Jacob Zedd (1999) 
   2, Michael Zedd (2001) 
   3, Elliot Zedd   

2) Linda Golding (1944) married David Cohen (1941) in 1963. They had 3 
sons: 

                                                
40 cf.rims.org/AMTemplate.cfm?template=/...cfm&ID... 
41 www.womensenews.org/.../leaders-lift-spirit-in-orthodox-womens-section 
42 Belinda G. Schwartz is a partner in the Herrick law firm. She practices in real-estate finance, cultural institutions, 
and government & law. She studied at NYU and Barnard. She a member of various Bar Associations. 
www.herrick.com/ 
43 Both sons spent time in Yeshivot in Israel. Max also participated in a volunteer program during a summer college 
leave. He was in Yeshiva here at the time of the Bat Mitzvah of our oldest Grand daughter Avital. I was so happy to 
have a member of my family here! 
44 www.bellarmine.edu 

        45 pview.findlaw.com/view/3023650_1 

46 The entire family spent a year in Israel in 2009, and lived in Jerusalem. There son Rafi was then in grade 12 in the 
Yeshiva in Chicago. Therefore he finished high school there. He was with them for vacations and afterwards spent 
over a year in Yeshivat Hakotel (www.hakotel.org.il/) in Jerusalem. Their daughter Rivka made many friends here 
and returned last summer to spend the summer here with her friends. Ayala's parents and sister live here. We 
enjoyed having them here and hope that they to will return to live here. The Jewish education is weak in Louisville, 
and there is no Jewish high school there. Now Rivka is living with Belinda so that she can attend a Jewish high 
school in the New York area. Next year Sam will attend the Yeshiva in Chicago. This year (2010-11) Sam has had 
home schooling for he was the only student in his eighth grade class. 
47 This was in 2009 The older children like it here very much.  Ayala has her immediate family here. 
Josh studied for his Rabbinical degree while they were here. My memory 
48 He has spent much time studying in Yeshiva in Israel. My memory 
49 en.wikipedia.org/.../St._John's_University_(New_York) 
50. Martin assumed he studied business. MG-13/2/2011 
51 JEP- 14/4/2011 
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 1- Jeffrey Cohen (1966) married Jody Rubin (1965). They have 2 
children: 

  1, Shira (1994) 
  2, Ethan (1996) 
 2- Randall Cohen (1971) married Robyn Lapp (1974) in 1998. They 

come to Israel every other year to spend the summer here.52 
They have 3 sons:  
  Micha Shai (2002) 
  Judah Adin (2005) 
 3. Michael Cohen (1973) 

 3) Sandra Golding  (1947) married Howard Peskin (1944) in 1969. They had 
2 daughters:  

 1) Janna (1972) married Kenneth Brown (1966) in 1996. they have 4 
children: 

  1, Mathew Solomon (1998) 
  2, Emilie Hanna (2000) 
  3, Logan Heath (2002) 
  4, Seth Noah (2005) 
 2) Mara (1976) married Jeffrey Lapp in 2002.  They have 1 son:  
  1, Elliot Simon (2006)  
4. May Golding (1916-2008) married Norman Rice (1913-1989) in 1939.  They lived 

in Clintondale53 N.Y. He was the pharmacist and post-master there. The pharmacy and post-
office were located in part of their house. They had 2 daughters: 
   1- Judith (1942) married Robert Conklin54 (1940) in 1962. They live in 
Myrtle Beach, South Carolina55.56 They have 2 daughters: 
    1) Susan (1963) married Barthold (Bob) Delphin in 2004. 
They have 1 daughter:  

1, Grace Elizabeth (2005) 
    2) Sharon (1965) married Rexhep Bobi in 1991. They have 1 
daughter:    1, Sofia (1993)57 
   2- Betty (1947) married Stephen Schoenberg in 1966. Betty was a 
home-economic teacher. Steve worked as an electrician for ABC TV. They have 2 children: 
    1) Robert (1971) married Michelle Greenblatt (1971) in 1994. 
They had 2 children:    
     1, Emily Nicole (2001) 
     2, Mathew Spencer (005) 
    2) Lisa (1974) married Mike Cohen in 2008. They live in the 
Boston area. They have 1 daughter:  

1, Dalia May (2010) 
                             
Sarah58 (1886-@1960) She came to England when she was about 15 years old. Therefore 
she did not have much or any schooling in England. She went to work. She did learn to speak 
English, but never actually learned to read or write English59.  She married Rubin Goldstone. 
They had a corner grocery store, in Manchester. They had 4 children: 
                                                
52 Thanks to Betty Schoenberg, and  Sandra Peskin, we got to know about them and were happy to meet them and 
have them visit us. 
53 Clintondale is a small hamlet, located near Kingston, NY. en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Clintondale,_New_York/ My 
Mother told me that May once went to visit a friend who lived there and decided that this was where she would live 
when she got married. My memory. 
54 He has been diagnosed with having Attorphy of the Brain JRC- 4/2/2011 
55 en.wikipedia.org/.../Myrtle_Beach,_South_Carolina 
56 They moved there after they both retired in 2000. JRC- 4/2/2011 
57 Sophia graduated from high-school in New York in June, 2011; and plans to go into the US Air Force, and wants to 
work with people with Post Traumatic Stress Syndrome. JRC- 4/2/2011 
58 According to JuddE’s “Family Tree” Edith was older than Sarah; but according to my Mother Sarah was older. I 
understand that Sarah was born in @1980. My memory Perhaps the "6" in 1886 should be a "0"? 
59 She would write to her sister Edith in America in the English language, but in Hebrew (Yiddish) characters. She 
wrote, as did many Jews of her time, connecting all of the consonants. As she grew older, her handwriting 
deteriorated. When my grandmother was old and sick she could not manage to read her sister's letters. At this time, 
and after she died only my Father (Oscar Herschman) was able to decipher them. He would read them aloud to his 
Mother-in-Law and anyone else who was interested. He was born in America; but knew Yiddish quite well. I believe 
he used his educational powers to do so. She was not told of my Grandmother's death and my Mother continued to 
write her in English. Her son Shmully, who spent a good of his life caring for his Mother, realized that something was 
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Sarah's children: (This is the English part of our Family.60) 
 1.Nettie Goldstone (1905- 1957) married X and lived in Manchester. Nettie evidently 
was a counselor for Jewish children from Germany who came to England during WWII61. 

2. Sonny Goldstone(1907- dec) married X and lived in Ireland.                             
3. Sidney (Shmully) Goldstone (1908- 1980) married Phyllis and lived in Manchester. 

Shmully and Phyllis married late for they both took care of elderly parents. They came to 
Israel a few times and my parents enjoyed being together with them. My Mother said that 
Louis, Shmully and Martin Golding were the smartest people of their respective generations in 
our family. 

4. Norman (Nachum) 62 (1917- dec) married Edith (- 1982) who was from Scotland. 
Nachum was a doctor and worked in the socialized medicine program. They had 3 children: 

1) Iris Rochelle (@1943-8/10/200163) married David Gould in 196864. They 
lived in Sale, Cheshire. Iris had cancer and was very active in the Cancer Care 
Organization in England.65They had 2 children: 
  1- Clive 

2-Vivienne Sara (1972) married Daniel Marc Green, son of Susan 
and Ian Green, and Grandson of Betty and Pip Green. Vivienne is a doctor.66  

   
2) Anthony (@1946) He married Jenny. They live in Radlett Hertfordshire. 

They have 3 children: 
 1- Nick 
 2- Lisa 
 3- Chloe 
3) Philip (@1948) He married Marcia. They live in Leeds. He came to spend 

some time with us at about the time when we got married (May, 1965). They have 3 
children: 

 1- Victoria 
 2- Robert 
 3- Jonathan67 

                       
Edith- Jewish name- Hinda (1882-1956) She was my Grandmother!   
She went to school for a while in Manchester. She knew how to read and write in English; 
however I was always under the impression that this was not too easy for her. She felt more 
comfortable in Yiddish and spoke in Yiddish to my Grandfather. She succeeded in teaching 
me a little bit of  Yiddish. She married Zacharia Marcus68 at about the beginning of the 
twentieth century. They lived on Sycamore Street, in Manchester. They had 4 children: 

                                                                                                                                       
wrong and sent my Mother the address of a friend, so that she would be able to write him what had happened. My 
memory 
60 My Mother kept up a strong contact with her English Family; particularly with Shmully and Phyllis. I am sorry; but 
after she died we seem to have lost contact. During the past few years I have met people who knew them, or were 
willing to help me locate them. I was given their addresses; and have written; but to no avail.  We did have contact 
with David Gould. He even sent me a photograph of Sarah and her children. The first time I looked at it, I was sure 
that he had sent me a picture of my Uncle Lionel and my Uncle Norman. Shmully and Sonny look so much lime 
Uncle Lionel and nachum looks like Uncle Norman (this is interesting for they have the same name). DG ( Iris' 
husband)-17/12/07; My memory 
61 A few years ago I met an Israeli woman who told me that she had had Nettie as her counselor when she arrived in 
England from Germany by way of the "Kindertransport" (www.kindertransport.org/). She looked at me and told me 
that I reminded her of someone by my mannerisms. We started to talk and then understood this connection. My 
memory 
62 The names of his sons' wives and the places where the live come from The Jewish Chronicle. JC- 4/8/78. 
63 Hoshanah Rabah  Tishri 21 5762. JC- 19/10/2001 
64 JC-20/12/2 
65 Iris Gould was so well liked in the local Jewish community that Sale synagogue was packed to the rafters at a 
recent memorial dinner… Iris, who passed away in October 2001, chaired the local Ladies Society, as well as 
working tirelessly on behalf of the synagogue, and it was friends who she met in these spheres who rallied round to 
help organise the event. The dinner was held in support of Macmillan Cancer Relief and The Christie, both of whom 
provided an excellent standard of care for Iris during her fight against cancer. The inspiration and drive behind the 
event was summed up by friend and organising committee member June Coppel, who said :"Her courage in the face 
of her battle against her cruel illness was truly an inspiration to all. This evening and its generous results for the 
causes concerned is surely a fitting testament to all that she stood for."   www.christie.nhs.uk › News section › Press 
archive. 
66 JC-9/6/2000 
67 The children's names come from The Jewish Chronicle. JC- 19/10/2001 
68 See The Marcus Family, p. 
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 1. Nettie D. -Necha69 D70vash (1907-1991) married Oscar Herschman71 (1903-1987) 
in 1938. She was born in Manchester72 and came to America by herself73. My Mother worked 
for a while as a statistical typist. The enjoyed hearing lectures; particularly on Jewish/ Zionist 
subjects. She attended many college courses, before she was married. My Father was an 
economist by vocation. They had 1 daughter: (This is me) 
  1) Esther Anne74 (1944-) married Mordechai Rechtschafner75 (1941-) in 1965. 
We live in Israel76. I now work as a librarian /archivist. I worked for over 22 years as house-
mother at Yeshivat HaKibbutz HaDat77i. We have 3 daughters: 
   1-Idit Meira78 (1968-) married Jacob (Koby) Inegram in 1990. Idit has 
a BA in Informal and Special Education and a Teacher's license from Bar Ilan University79. 
Masters' degree in Jewish education from Touro Unniversity80, Jerusalem. She works as a 
teacher. Koby has a BS degree in computer-electricity from Ariel University81 and Bar Ilan 
(Zemach branch) . They now live in Katzrin82, Ramat HaGolan83. They have 7 children: 
    1, Avital Neta84 (1994) 
    2, Yael Shoshana85 (1995) 

                                                
69 Note on "Family Tree" how the name Necha repeats itself. 
70 My Mother said that this name was never translated or transliterated into English. Therefore she was seriously 
thinking of calling herself DESTIMONA (Shakespeare: Othello- answers.yahoo.com/question/index?qid). She usually 
signed with the letter D. My memory 
71 Oscar had a degree in economics. He was often described as a scholar. See my article about my Father: The 
Story of Oscar Herschman and his Family http://www.shtetlinks.jewishgen.org/Vitsyebsk/ family_stories scroll down 
H(G)erschman scroll down The Story of Oscar Herschman and his Family    23 pps   
72 She attended Harper Hay High School, and was very proud of this fact. She saved the blazer from the school for a 
very long time and would have liked me to wear it to school. She simultaneously went to a Hebrew-Jewish school. 
She learned a lot there. When she came to NY, she corresponded with her siblings in Hebrew. I still have a few of 
these letters. My memory. 
73 Nettie Marcus, age 17, occupation or calling:  in school, arrived Nov. 11, 1924, on the same ship, the Scythia, from 
Liverpool.  She is described as a "British national."  Her nearest relative was her mother, Mrs. Marcus, residing on 
Sycamore St. in Hightown, Manchester.  She was 5-2, had dark complexion, brown hair, and blue eyes.  Her 
destination in the U.S. was to join her father, Zacharia Marcus, at 180 Beach 64th St., Arverne. LL- 5/9/2008 
74 I am named after my Paternal Grandmother. Her name was ESTHER. She was once very very sick and as the 
custom was, the name Chia (life) was added to her name. Therefore she became Chia-Esther and that is my name. 
The Chia was translated into English as ANNE in her case, and therefore also in my case. My Mother had an Aunt 
Anna (her father's youngest sister Anna) who died when she was young. (See Marcus Family Background; p. ) 
Therefore my Mother liked to think that the Anne was also after her. My parents liked to call me by both names; but I 
did not like that. I still have some cousins who refer to me that way. It was hard enough going through public school 
with an uncommon and very Jewish name. Now I live in a place where there are 7 women with the name ESTHER. 
75 Mordechai I was born in Lyon, France. His family (parents [originally form Lvov and the neighboring town let of 
Sokal, Ukraine], 1 older brother and 2 older sisters) had fled from Belgium at the beginning of WWII. When he was 
baby they fled to Switzerland by way of the mountains. After the War they returned to Belguim; and in 1951 
immigrated to Melbourne Australia. He came on Aliyah as a participant in the Bnei Akiva   Hahshara program in 
1961. Afterwards he joined the Machal branch (www.mahal-idf-volunteers.org/) of the Israeli army; where he served 
as a paratrooper. He served in the 6-Day War. See my article: The RECHTSCHAFNER Family (844MB). 
76 We are members of Kibbutz Ein-Zurim, which is associated with the Religious Kibbutz Movement 
(www.kdati.org.il/info). We have been here since 1965. 
77 www.masaisrael.org/.../Yeshivat+HaKibbutz+Hadati+Ein+Tzurim.htm 
78 Idit is named after my maternal grandmother Edith and my father's brother Meir. A short while before my 
grandmother died, I was in the room where she was lying in bed. It was obvious that she knew she was going to die. 
She said that she wondered if they would have anyone named after them. Then she looked in my direction and said " 
this one will, she will not forget us" Then I knew that I had to some day have a daughter and to name her after my 
grandmother. Then she turned to her daughter Fagie (Frances) and said to her that she should take her wedding ring 
and save it for me; for as the oldest grand daughter it would some day belong to me. My aunt came to our wedding 
and brought the ring with her. I also received her engagement ring, since I was the first Grand daughter to get 
married. Then my grandfather remarked that Jackie would get his Shabbat (gold) watch, which was on a chain so 
that it could be kept in a special pocket. My memory. My father's brother Meir was killed in an automobile accident, 
when he was about 15 years old. See my article about my Father: The Story of Oscar Herschman and his Family 
http://www.shtetlinks.jewishgen.org/Vitsyebsk/ family_stories scroll down H(G)erschman scroll down The Story of 
Oscar Herschman and his Family    23 pps.             
79 www1.biu.ac.il/ 
80 www.touro.edu/general/about.asp 
81 www.ariel.ac.il/site/portals/english/ 
82 en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Katzrin 
83 en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Golan_Heights 
84 Avital Neta is named after my Mother (Z"L) Nettie. Had she been named Neta –the daughter of Idit, then her name 
would have been the same as my Mother's , the name that appears on her gravestone. I think that this would have 
been too hard on Idit; for after my Mother died and she saw the name Idit there, it was hard for her. My memory 
85 Yael Shoshana is named after Mordechai's Mother Sosha Dina. Yael wrote a composition about her Great-
grandmother Sosha, who lived through the Holocaust for her Bat Mitzvah project. So far, 3 of her siblings have used 
this article  (which is based on my article [the Rechtschafner Family; see Introduction]. Avital is currently using it for 
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    3, Yonaton Aryeh86 (1997) 
    4, Renat Leah87 (1999) 
    5, Zuria Shir88 (2002) 
    6, Tehila Rivka89 (2003) 
    7, Yiska Oria90 (2007) 
   2- Ayelet Fruma91 (1971) married Zachary92 Prigozin (1961) in 1998. 
Ayelet has a BS and a Masters'93 Degree in nursing from Hadassah Medical School94, and 
currently works in a diabetic infirmary in Jerusalem. She lectures in Sharei Zedek Nursing 
School95and Hadassah Medical School. Zachary is a licensed doctor from Russia. He now 
works as a male dialysis nurse Sharei Zedek Hospital96. They now live in Zur Hadassah97. 
They have 3 sons: 
    1, Daniel Asher98 (1999) 
    2, Yonatan-Yoni99 (2001) 
    3, Asaf100  (2008) 
   3- Doria Zippora101 (1980) married Moty Ivgy102 (1966) in 2006. Doria 
has a BA in Jewish Philosophy and Art History and a Teachers license from the Hebrew 
University103 in Jerusalem104. She now works in the Ariel University. Moty has a Yeshiva 
education. He now has his own catering business. They now live in Nofim105, which is a 
suburb of Karnei Shomron106. 

                                                                                                                                       
her project for her trip to Poland –the Concentration Camps this coming summer-20111. Yonaton wrote about 
Mordechai's Father for his Bar Mitzvah project. Renat is currently using it for various Bat Mitzvah projects. 
86 Yonaton Aryeh is named after Mordechai's Father Yitzchak (Ignus) Aryeh, He was born on the day that Mordechai 
got up from the shiva on his Father, He got up and went to the hospital; since one of Koby's brothers is also called 
Yitzchak, this could not be his first name. Yonaton is very fitting for it means – given by G-d. 
87 Idit chose this name for she wanted a name from the Tfila (prayers). Renat's middle name "Leah" is after a woman 
on Koby's side of the family and after Leah Milirom (the wife of a cousin of Mordechai's Mother). She was a very 
righteous lady. 
88 Zuria's middle name is "Shir". Idit chose this name for it contains the Hebrew letters of my father's name (Asher)  
89 Tehila Rivka has a very special name. The story is as follows: I had a very good friend-Riva Pinx Lutfi. She died  in 
2002. Our daughters felt to her almost as an aunt. When Tehila was born it was Koby's idea to name her after Riva. 
Therefore they had a middle name. They looked for a first name to be an adjective for the name Rivka. They picked 
the name Tehila (It means Psalm /praise). 
90  I asked Koby to please name her after my Uncle Lionel. He loved this country so much and he so deserved to 
have an Israeli baby, who would be getting a proper Jewish eduction named after him. The Hebrew letters of the 
name Oria contain the Hebrew letters of the name Areh (My Uncle Lionel's Hebrew name). It means light and 
sometimes a derivation of this word is used as a name that is in memory of a dear one. 
91 Ayelet is named after my paternal grandfather whose Hebrew name was Zvi, and a good friend of mine Frumie 
(Obermeister) Lipshitz, who died of cancer at the age of 27 and after coming on Aliyah. She was married, and the 
mother of 4 children.  I am still in contact with them.  My Father told a bit about his family to my Mother after Ayelet 
was given her name. He had never told so much previously. My memory. 
92 Zachary /Zacharia) is not a very common name in Ashkenazi Jewry. When Ayelet and Zachary decided to get 
married, we had him ask his Grandmother where the family was originally from, for we thought that it might be 
possible that there was a family connection.  
93 She specialized in cancer research. She now works in an infirmary in Jerusalem. 
94 www.hadassah.org.il › ... › School of Nursing 
95 www.hospitalsoup.com/listing/47675-shaare-zedek-school-of-nursing 
96 www.szmc.org.il/en/ 
97 This settlement is located southwest of Jerusalem. he.wikipedia.org/wiki/ הדסה_צור  
98 Zachary is a Bible scholar, and liked the story of Daniel. I asked Ayelet and Zachary to please give him my Father's 
name (Asher) as a middle name.  
99 Even before his Brit, his parents decided that he would be called Yoni. Yonaton is a name for his Brit was on 
Chanuka, and Yonaton was one of Judah Macabee's brothers. It is also similar in meaning to the name of Zachary's 
maternal grandfather Matityhu. Zachary's maternal grandmother, Mara, (Bula  [the name Zachary called her when he 
was young]) lived with them almost until she died. 
100 Zachary as a student of the Bible liked the meaning of this name. He gave a speech at the Brit, and stated that 
this name is a symbol for a new and good beginning. 
101 Doria Zippora is named after my grandfather Zacharia, who I loved so very much. Since there is no feminine of the 
name Zacharia (the meaning is G-d remembered), we decided that Doria would be a proper extension of the 
meaning of his name. We understood that G-d remembered us, and gave us a present. The meaning of Doria is a 
Present from G-d The name  Zippora was the Habrew name of my aunt Frances. 
102 Moty is the oldest son of Rabbi Felix (Asher) Ivgy, the Rabbi of congregation Kehilat Nachalot Ya'akov, in 
Ra'anana (en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Ra'anana) http://el-olam.mykehila.com/ He is also the Rabbi of the prisons in that 
area. 
103 www.huji.ac.il/huji/eng/ 
104 en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Jerusalem 
105 sdf.shomron.org.il/yishuv/nofim.html 
106 www.ginaplus.org/kshomron.htm 
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 2. Lionel (1909-1999107) married Jeanette Salkin (1912-1994) in 1944. Lionel served 
in the USA air force during WWII. He had108 had a prestigious office job in Manhattan. 
Jeanette worked many years as an assistant kindergarten teacher.109 They visited us in Israel 
a few times.110 They had 2 children: 
  1) Marcia Elaine (1946) married Lonny Partridge (1945) in 1968. Marcia 
works as a speech therapist. Lonny is now retired; but worked a high-school teacher in NYC 
public education. They have 2 children:  
   1- Allison (1972) married James in 2005. Allison works in cosmetics. 
They have one son: 
    1, Colin Leo111- (2008) 
   2-  Jonathan (1978) Jonathan works as a television producer. 
  2) Mark Phillip (1951-) married Diane Lagenegro (1950) in 1979. He visited 
Israel when he was a young man.112 He studied medicine in Italy.113They have 1 daughter: 
   1- Stephanie Jennel (1986) 
 3. Norman –Chemi (1911-1986)114 married Rose Hochberg (1912-2003). They had a 
store for women's apparel in Mount Vernon115, New York. They visited Israel a few times. 
116They had 2 sons: 
  1) Jack David Marcus117 (1942) married Sylvia Smolenski. They divorced. 
They lived in Manhattan, and Jackie still lives there. He worked in public health. He visited 
Israel a few times118. They had 2 children: 
   1- Jessica Fay119 (1980) married Justin Gallagher120 on June 27, 
2009. They have 1 son: 
    1, Ian Joseph (2011) 
   2- Adam121 Zachary122 (1982) married Britanny Kohn (2011) 
  2) Daniel Lewis (1946) married Basya Baenboim123. They have 3 children: 
   1, Michele Edith124 (1985) 

                                                
107 "One Lionel Marcus, born May 5, 1909, SSN (social security number) in NY State, died June 26, 1997, in Franklin 
Square, Nassau County, NY. LL- 8/52008." This information is from The Social Security Death Index (SSDI) on the 
internet (www.rootsweb.ancestry.com/cgi-bin/ssdi.cgi) 
108 Lionel did not have a high-school diploma, for he came to America at about the time he should have been finishing 
high-school. He was a self educated man. He served in the US army in the Far East in WWII. He was afraid that he 
might lose his job, when younger people with college degrees came into his firm. He feared that the firm might come 
to the conclusion that he was not needed. For that reason, he got permission from a Rabbi, when he was sitting 
Shiva on his Mother Edith, to go in to work part of the last 3 days of the Shiva and then return to sit Shiva with his 
Father and siblings'.   
109 The children loved her very much. Those of them, who happened to meet with her years after she was their 
teacher, were always quite happy to see her. 
110 The first time they came, was when Idit was a baby. Uncle Lionel was standing outside our house with Idit in his 
arms. I overheard what he said to her "little baby, I am your\great Uncle. I came 7000 miles to see you. You have my 
Mother's name!"  
111 Colin makes his Grandmother so very happy; and this in turn makes me very happy.  He is also named after his 
grandfather Lionel. 
112 He stayed a while with my parents. He was a bit sick and my parents called a doctor for him, and took care of him 
as if he was a baby. My memory. 
113 He was then thinking of being a doctor or a veterinarian. He became a European university student for a while and 
was very happy in the University life. I think he would have gone on being a university student/scholar for almost 
ever. After a while, his parents had him return to the USA to finish his studies. 
114 One Norman Marcus, born Nov. 30, 1911, got his SSN in NY State, died Sept. 1986 in Palm Beach, FL. LL- 
8/52008." This information  isfrom The Social Security Death Index (SSDI) on the internet 
(www.rootsweb.ancestry.com/cgi-bin/ssdi.cgi) 
115 en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Mount_Vernon,_New_York; They lived there, as did Rose's entire family. 
116 They were the first ones of our family to come here. My memory 
117 My Uncle Norman made up a song "Jackie and his Daddy on the Whitestone Bridge". Quite a few years later, he 
explained to my Mother and me why he did so. He said that when he drove to Brooklyn to visit his parents with Jackie 
in the car, he would be terribly scared that Jackie would open up the door of the car, while riding over the Whitestone 
Bridge, and fall into the water. He thought that by singing with him. Jackie would not think of doing such a thing. My 
memory. 
118 Jackie was once a leader of a Bnei Brith (bnaibrith.org/) group that came to visit Israel. My memory 
119 She is named after our Aunt Frances (Fagel/Fagie). Jackie nicknamed her "Fuff". They were very attached to each 
other. It was quite clear to me that he would name his daughter after her. 
120 He is an artistic photographer. 
121 Adam participated in a youth program in Israel in the summer of 1997. My daughter Ayelet and I spent some time 
with him. His counselor asked who we were. He replied that we were "distant" relatives. I corrected him saying that 
there is l a physical distance between us; but I feel that we are close relatives. 
122 He is named after our Grandfather Zacharia. Thus, Jackie carried out our grandparents wish. 
123 Basya had 2 children by a previous marriage: Howie and Lisa. All 5 children are treated as equal by Danny and 
Basya. 
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   2, Sharon Nettie125 (1986) 
   3, David Norman126 (1988) 
 4. Frances –Fagel127l (1917-1973128) married Joe Gross129 (-1998) in 1954. At first 
they lived in Manhattan130, in an apartment hotel on Central Park West131, and afterwards in 
Jersey City132. She worked as a secretary in Manhattan. Her nephews and nieces loved her 
very much.133 She had great influence134 upon her parents; since she got married late, and 
lived with her parents in "the House135" until her wedding. She was a very good student136, 
very attractive137, and liked art work. She was always a Religious Zionist138. They visited 
Israel a few times.139 
 
Etta had 2 daughters from her previous marriage: 
 
Janie: 1881-@1948) She was born in Cherkassy140. She married Mr. Shorr and lived in 
England; but came to the USA together with her sister Lena141. She was very sickly. Her 
husband evidently died in England. They did not have any children.142 She died in the 1930's 
or -40's.143 She was a very good friend of Annie Wintrob.144  
 
Lena (1891-1954): She was born in Cherkassy. She married Harry Sagar145 in England. He 
immigrated to the USA, where he apparently had family. He died in 1918 and was buried in 
Philadelphia.146  The family was very poor147. Harry eventually left the family 148; for it was 

                                                                                                                                       
124 She is named after our Grandmother Edith 
125 She is named after Danny's maternal great-grandmother (Mrs. Hochberg). 
126 He is named after Danny's Father Norman. 
127 She was named after her Paternal Grandmother. Variations of this name appear in the Marcus Family 
128 She died of cancer at the young age of 53. She suffered very much before she died. My parents were already 
living in Israel, and my Mother thought of possibly making a trip to be with her. My memory. 
129 He was from a religious Jewish Family, which had settled in Jersey City. They were originally Galutziana 
(en.wikipedia.org/.../History_of_the_Jews_in_Galicia) Jews. The family owned and ran a Tavern and had to keep it 
open on Shabbat. The women of the family were there on Saturday mornings, when the men went to pray. Joe's 
Mother would sweep the money from the counter with her apron, and into a box; for she did not want to touch it on 
Shabbat. (I remember hearing the story) My Memory.  
130 en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Manhattan  -   
131 en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Central_Park_West 
132 en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Jersey_City,_New_Jersey 
133 Jackie nicknamed her"Fuf" and I called her "Dede'.  
134 She had her room refurnished and therefore the entire apartment underwent a major change. She told my 
grandmother what kinds of new foods she should prepare (eggplant, and avocado), and told my Grandparents what 
television programs they should be sure to watch. My memory 
135 This is what my Grandparents home was called by the immediate family. 
136 She attended Far Rockaway High-School after the family came to the USA. She won a scholarship to Vassar 
College (www.vassar.edu/); but she could not accept it because of the additional expenses it would have caused her 
parents. She won a French medal. I still have it. My memory 
137 Edgar Simon wrote me a while ago that he and Gilbert referred to her as a "sex symbol". 
138 She made a trip to Israel with her husband. He was also here after she died. She was a member and then a 
leader in Junior Hadassah (www.zionism-israel.com/dic/Hadassah.htm). She attended many lessons in the Hebrew 
language. One of her Hebrew teachers (Mrs. Evelyn Sussman) was very proud of her as a student in her Adult 
Hebrew Class. My memory. 
139 She came to our wedding. He came after she died and visited us. My memory 
140 Her Father's name was Meir Goodhut.  This information is from her Birth Certificate, which is written in Russian I 
found someone to translate is for me. 
141 VSR- 25/8/11 
142 JB-25/7/11 
143 VSR- 25/7/11 
144 They were apparently friends throughout their lives.  Later on, Annie became the wife of Louis Golding. 
Announcement of Auntie Janie's death. VSR- 25/8/11 
145 Harry Zeiger was known as Harry Zager in Manchester. He was born in Truestanetz, Podolsky Guvernia, Russia. 
This information is from a letter written by Pinkus Kilimnik on December 31, 1937, to Rabbi Joshua Kein. VSR-2 
5/8/11 
146 This information is from a letter written by Rabbi s. Joshua Kohn,Rabbi of the West Philadelphia Jewish 
Community Center on December 29,a927. It states :" We the undersigned, testify that harry Zager, who was known 
in the USA, as Harry Zieger, died in Washington D.C. during the year 1918, and was buried in Philadelphia. Signed: 
brother Zager,brother- in-law Pinkus Kiliminik." VSR believes that he was  a brother-in-law through a sister of 
Harry's.Harry's sister's husband She also states that she has been told that her Grandma Lena changed the family 
name informally (not through official means)  to Sagar, and that she did not spell very well. Sagar is usually spelled-
SagerVSR-25/8/11 
147 My Mother told me this. My Mother saved a manicuring set that they gave her as a good-bye present when she 
left England. I always wondered how they were able to give her a present if they were so poor. My memory. 
148 He left the family when the children were young. It is possible that they didn't really know him. JB- 7/5/11 
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very hard to live with Lena. The family immigrated to the USA. The sons, Al149 (Abe) and Ian 
(Isidore) came first150. Then they sent for Yetta (Rita.151), and eventually for their Mother Lena 
and their Aunt Janie. Auntie Lena lived in a sort of dark apartment, which was a few steps 
down. She was always wearing an apron when we came to visit. She appeared to me to be 
tall and thin152. She was actually petite.153 
Lena's children154:  
 1. Abraham-Abe (1911155-d) married Beulah Lavenger (1913-1991156). They eloped 
in order to save their families the expense of having to pay for a wedding. They had 
gone camping with Ian. He went to CCNY.157 He worked at various jobs,158 mostly men's 
haberdashery159. Beulah was the kindest person, caring about everyone else.160 They had 
one daughter161, 162: 
  1) Valerie Jane163(1949) is married to Howard Rosenhoch164 and lives in 
Buffalo165, New York. She has a Masters degree in Urban Planning; but has worked in health 
Planning and Policy for the last 38 years166.She was quite active in the PTA of her sons' 
schools. She is chairwoman of YadB'Yad167. She has 2 sons: 
   1, Alan168 (1984) is working in Economic Development and finishing 
his studies for his MBA.169  
   2, David170 (1990) He has Down syndrome.171 He graduated from 
high school with an "individualized education program degree".172 He is participating in a 
program at one of the local colleges that is geared to his needs for learning skills and how to 
be independent.   

                                                
149 My Grandfather signed his visa application as being responsible for his nephew, My Mother signed as a witness. 
VSR- 25/8/11 
150 They came in 1930.  
151 VSR- 2/7/2011 
152 We visited her a few times in her apartment in Flatbush (en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Flatbush,_Brooklyn), Brooklyn, New 
York. My memory 
153 JB-26/7/11 
154 Note that they all changed their names from very Jewish sounding names to English names. My Mother's memory 
155 JB- 25/7/11. Beulah wrote this information in her "Grandma book" when her first Grandson Alan was born. VSR- 
25/8/11B 
156 Fortunately, she was able to get to know Alan and he remembers her.  But, her early death at 77 meant she did 
not know David beyond his first year and didn't get to see how  well he has matured. VSR-25/8/11B 
157 http://www.ccny.cuny.edu/ 
158 JB- 25/7/11 
159 VSR- 25/8/11 
160 Beulah and Valerie had a wonderful relationship and Valerie still miss her terribly.  Beulah remarried in 1971 to the 
man she had been engaged to just after she graduated from high school.  She broke it up because he was such a 
mishuganah.  They went their separate ways, married, each had a child and lost their spouses to illness.  They met 
again at a Madison High School  (en.wikipedia.org/.../James_Madison_High_School) reunion.  They dated and were 
married for 20 years.  She said he was still mishuganah, but at that point in didn't matter as much. VSR-5/8/11 
161 My Uncle Lionel once returned from some place, and when he entered   "the house",  his first remark  was  to tell 
that he had met Beulah and Valerie. He said that they looked like sisters and both looked extremely pretty. My 
memory. 
162 Did I tell you the fondness I have for your mother, because she put a note in the wall for my mother when I was 
pregnant with Alan? VSR- 23/8/11. I found this very interesting for my Mother was not the type to put a note in the 
Western Wall. Yet she probably wanted to carry out her cousin's wish and prayer.  
163 She was named after Auntie Janie. VSR- 25/8/11 
164 They met the second day they arrived at the University of Buffalo in the marching band; he to play saxophone and 
she to twirl a baton.  They  married in 1971 and just celebrated 40 wonderful years.  He is an attorney with a large 
firm in Buffalo.  His practice is primarily civil defense work but also ethics and risk prevention.  He is very active in the 
community and is presently president of our synagogue, Temple Beth Zion (www.tbz.org/). VSR-25/8/11B 
165 en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Buffalo,_New_York 
166 She works for a"not-- profit health plan in upstate New York that serves 2 million people, and works on policy 
issues. ( such as the recently passed health care reform by studying issues, formulating positions, communicating 
and meeting with legislators in Albany and Washington) and publishing a monthly electronic public policy newsletter: 
[https://www.excellusbcbs.com/wps/portal/xl/our/news/capitolbriefings]). VSR-25/8/11B 
167 This is an agency, which is devoted to the inclusion of people with developmental disabilities in the Jewish 
community.(www.yendor.com/yadbeyad/who.html) She works with other parents to advocate for better services for 
our children, especially as they reach adulthood and want to move out of the family home into an independent setting 
in the community that provides them with quality of life in a safe environment. VSR- 25/8/11 B 
168 Alan was named after his Grandfather Al Sagar. VSR- 25/8/11 
169 He is quite close to Ricky's and Janine's children. VH- 7/2/2011 
170 David was given the middle name Isaac in memory of his Great-uncle Ian's Hebrew name.. VH- 25/8/11 
171 He is quite accomplished. He led the entire congregation in prayer at is Bar Mitzvah. His parents are working with 
six other families to create a group home for them to live in semi-independently.  It is a struggle with the budget in 
NYS, but they will not give up for our children. VSR- 7/2/2011 
172 VSR- 25/8/11 
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 2. Ian (Isidor) (-1987173) married Rosalind Leiberman174. They lived for a while in 
Binghamton, NY and then moved to Syracuse175. They came to visit the Grandmothers in 
Brooklyn reasonably often. We usually met with them, or in the Grandmothers' homes in the 
Flatbush section of Brooklyn, or in my Grandparents house.176 They had 3 children:  
   1) Richard-Rick (1948) Ricky is in Phoenix177,Arizona area. He was a school 
superintendent178 in a suburb of Phoenix. He has a doctorate in Education. He had 2 wives. 
He had 2 children with his 1st

   1- Laura (1980) She married Michael Stevens180 and lives in 
Buffalo181, New York.182 

 wife Nancy179: 

   2- Jason (1983) He married Katie Wunderlich183. They live in 
Rochester184, New York.185 
He had 1 daughter with his 2nd
   3-  Rachel (@2004)187 

  wife Mary186: 

   2) Janine188 (1949) She married Mike Botty in 1974. She has a college 
degree in special education.189 They live in Fulton190, NY. Janine taught special education for 
a few years and then did some substitute teaching191. Mike is now a retired dentist. He and 
his partner own 4 dental offices.192 They have 2 children: 
   1- Amy (1978) She is a special education teacher. She lives in the, 
Rochester, NY area. 
   2- David (1983) married Trisha Lyons in 2007193.194 He lived in 
Alexandria195, VA. Now they have returned to live in Syracuse.196  He is the Director of 
Operations for Northeast Dental Associates.197 Trisha works for a NYS politician. They are 
expecting their 1st child in mid-December 2011.198   
   3) Michael Lynn (1952) Michael was named after his grandmother Lena. He 
has Down syndrome199. He took very good care of his Father and is now doing the same for 
his Mother.200 
 3. Yetta (Rita) married Stephen Saskiewicz. He worked for the Post Office. Rita was 
in the army, as a WAC201.  She died in Buffalo, New York.202 
 
                                                
173 He suffered from heart problems and a few strokes. JB-7/22007 
174 She was always very attractive and very nice to speak with. My memory. She still enjoys going to the beauty 
parlor to get her hair done. JB-7/22007  
175 en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Syracuse,_New_York 
176 My childhood memory. 
177 en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Phoenix,_Arizona 
178 He is basically in charge of the education there. JB-14/1/2007 
179 JB- 25/7/11 
180 JB- 25/7/11 
181 en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Buffalo,_New_York 
182 VSR- 7/2/2011 
183 JB- 25/7/11 
184 en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Rochester,_New_York 
185 VSR- 7/2/2011 
186 JB- 25/7/11 
187 JB-7/2/2007 
188 Here is something that Janine wrote recently about which shows our relationship as cousins: " Jackie 
(I used to have a crush on him). He & I "borrowed" steak knives from DiDi's (Diane Pomerantz) wedding reception. I 
still have them. Janine" JB- 1/8/11 
189 JB- 25/7/11 
190 en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fulton,_New_York 
191 It is a while since she worked, for in 2002 she had back surgery and also breast cancer. She is now healthy. In 
2007 she had a personal trainer and therefore had a workout 6 days a week. She believed that that way was more 
fun. JB-7/2/2007 
192 Mike and his partner also owned 2 other practices. JB-7/2/2002, JB- 26/7/11 
193 JB- 7/2/07 
194 JB- 31/3/09 
195 en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Alexandria,_Virginia. He worked there for a financial consulting firm. JB- 31/3/09 
196 VSR- 7/2/2011 
197 His Father owns these offices. JB-25/7/11 
198 JB25/7/11 
199 en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Down_syndrome 
200 They live in the same house in Syracuse. Michael helps his Mother in the house. She had 2 hip replacements; but 
is OK. He attends a sheltered workshop in Syracuse, during the week. JB-7/2/2002 
201 www.history.army.mil/WAC.HTM 
202 After breaking her hip and convalescing in Glens Falls where she lived alone, Valerie and family moved her to the 
Weinberg Campus (Jewish long-term care facility) in Buffalo.  Valerie  covered up her birth date, because she was 
very sensitive about age and she wants to honor that even now. VSR- 25/8/11B 
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Etta and Philip Golding had 3 children: 
 
Abey203- (1893-1965204) He was born in Cherkassy.  Abe married205 Ginny Gustav206. 207 They 
had 2 children:  
              1. Rita Golding208 (1920209-1994) married Marty Pomerantz210 in 1942. They had 2 
children: 
              1) Leslie (1946-1988) married Diane in 1973. He was a bright and precocious 
boy who was very active.    He had a fair share of problems but was a very talented 
photographer.  They had I daughter: 
                        1- Lisa (b.1974) She attended the University of Colorado at Boulder. 
She now lives in NYC where she owns a very successful music travel business.  
              2) Diane (Dede) (b.1948) She was married briefly to Gary Weiss, and 
afterwards to Myron Brenner in 1982, in Baltimore. She graduated from Hunter College211 in 
NYC in 1970; and she  received her MA from the New School for Social Research in 1973. 

                                                
203 Abe was an extremely sensitive man and did not hide his sensitive feelings; so he shared his tears as well as his 
laughter throughout his life. He was very, very close and attached to his brother Louis throughout his entire life. He 
thought of him as a celebrity. They went awol (disappeared from army duty) from the army during WWI. In 
Manchester he was a tailor and a dry goods salesman.  He always had the appearance very "dapper" little 
Englishman. His shoes were always shined, his suits pressed, he was adorable (also my memory). The depression 
was difficult for them financially. It is possible that by then they had had moved to Brooklyn. Louis suggested that he 
return to England to find work.  So in late 1936, Abe, Ginny and Philip went back to London and lived with Louis.  Abe 
began to establish himself there.  Rita remained in Brooklyn, living with her maternal grandparents while she finished 
high school.  The family remained in London and lived in Louis' home for about a year. Rita had her passage booked 
to return to England when Louis became fearful about Hitler's growing power and insisted that they return to the U.S.  
Rita therefore never made the trip to England and the family re-established themselves in New York. Ginny made 
wonderful coats for Rita and later re-did them for her Granddaughter Dede; who  still has a couple of coats and capes 
that she made.  If Dede was sick, he would sit and hold her hand and talk to her... as you can tell, she loved her 
grandparents very, very much! DP- 6/2/11.  
204 The date is February 25, 1965 according to his Granddaughter Diane Pomerantz, who has his “death certificate” in 
her possession and has checked it for me. DP- 4/5/11. According to JuddE’s “Family Tree” he died in 1962. As far as 
my memory goes he was alive until about at least 1965. When Mordechai and I decided that we would marry, he told 
me that he had an aunt in Brooklyn who lived at 2025 Ocean Avenue.. I was shocked and told him that I had a Great 
Uncle and Aunt who lived at 2055 Ocean Avenue. They had back windows that faced each other but didn't know 
each other. Anyway, they all met with my parents in Uncle Abe and Auntie Ginny’s house. It is as if Auntie Ginny 
made us an “engagement party”. This took place in the autumn of 1964. Mordechai and I were not present, for we 
lived already in Israel. My memory 
205 They met in Manchester. Ginny worked in a factory as a seamstress where the women were locked in for the day.  
Abe saw her and liked her and he would be at the door at the beginning of the day and the end of the day to flirt with 
her and we guess that that was it!  They married in Manchester, England. They spoke English between themselves 
and Yiddish was very rarely spoken. Both were very skilled at sewing. Ginny could make just about anything out of 
fabric, and without a pattern. DP- 6/2/11. 
206 Her sister, Ada Gustav, was married to Nat Hut. He was a cousin of my Grandmother, Edith. See JuddE's "Family 
Tree". Ginny Gustav Golding was born in Manchester in 1895 (?).  She was the second of 6 children, the oldest 
having been born in Russia. Her Mother died at the age of 96.206  She lived on Bloomsbury Road, which was similar 
to "Magnolia Street206,"(Christian on one side and Jewish on the other). 
207 Throughout the years Uncle Abe's family had contact with the Marcus and Sager families.  Janine and Rick Sager 
were close to Dede's age; so whenever they were in Brooklyn they would get together, and she felt particularly close 
with them.  When they were young, people would think that Janine and she were sisters because at that time they 
looked so much alike (Diane wishes she looked like her now!) Valerie Sager, though, was really her friend as she 
grew up.  They spent a great deal of time together, especially as teenagers. DP- 6/2/11 
208 Rita went to business school after high school and she got a job. She helped he parents financially. She was an 
excellent student and artist; but did not receive the support from her parents, as her brother did in respect to 
continuing her education.. DP- 6/2/11 
209 Rita was born in Manchester. The family immigrated to America when she was 18 months old. 
There is a bit of a discrepancy about how they came to America. It is possible that Abe came first and lived with the 
family that was already in Far Rockaway. It seems that aside from Julius Golding, there were also cousins there (my 
memory). He got a job as a sewing machine operator. Ginny and little Rita came over about 6 months later. There 
were lots of stories told about Rita, at 18 months, on the passage over.  She was quite a rambunctious little girl, and 
she rode on the vacuum cleaners that the stewards used to clean the carpet. Ginny was always worrying she was 
going to go overboard. These stories lead to believe that Abe was not on the boat! They lived in Far Rockaway when 
they arrived in the USA. Rita told stories of how the big cousins played with her. Apparently these were the children 
of Julius Golding. DP thinks that these children may have been Lionel and Norman (the children of Edith and 
Zacharia Marcus), but they came to America in about 1924. Ginny's family (parents and siblings) came shortly 
afterwards. DP- 6/2/11 
210 . Rita met Martin Pomerantz in 1940. Ginny loved Martin and according to Rita "I didn't have a choice."   Before 
they met, Martin had won the golden gloves for boxing in 1935 and was deciding whether to box professionally.  Rita 
did not want him to and so that was it.  Martin was a great athlete and so when he was in the service had a pretty 
cushy job.  He was the calisthenics instructor and spent four years on Miami Beach. DP- 6/2/11 
211 www.hunter.cuny.edu/ 
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Then she left for California.  She received her Ph.D. in Psychology in 1980.  She then moved 
to Baltimore to do her Post doctorate. She is now divorced. They have 2 children: 
                    1-  Jane Aviv (1988) 
                    2-  Dan (1991) 
              2.  Philip Golding (1927212) married Joyce Charlip in 1954. Philip started college at 
City College but after one semester he joined the Navy in WWII. It is not clear what exactly he 
did then; but he did see the world. He finished college when he returned and then was called 
back to duty and went to Korea.  When he returned he became a CPA and worked for New 
York State for many years. They had 2 children: 

1) Laurence (Larry) (1957) married Tina. They divorced. Uncle Louis' last 
book, Little Old Admiral

2) Elisabeth-Beth (1959) 
, was dedicated to Larry.  

Louis- (1895- 1958213) He was already born in Manchester214, England. He was a British 
writer, very famous215 in his time especially for his novels216, though he is now largely 
neglected. He also wrote short stories, essays, fantasies, travel books and poetry. He showed 
talent in writing from when he was a young boy217.He did not get along well with his Father.218  
He was a good friend of Maurice Samuel.219 His novel Magnolia Street220 was a bestseller of 
1932.221 He traveled the world.222 He was invited to many important places. He was once 
invited by the Queen.223 He married his childhood friend, Annie Wintrobe224. 

                                                
212 He was born in New York. He was an excellent student. His parents wanted him to continue with his eduction.DP- 
6/2/11 
213 He died in London. (http://www.eb.com/) In my opinion, he had a very impressive address: 16 Hamilton Terrace. 
214 In the Redbank neighborhood, not far from Victoria station, which was in the center of the city. WK 
215 Louis Golding was the successor of Israel Zangwill (http://www.jewishvirtuallibrary.org/jsource/biography/zangwi.), 
as the leading Anglo-Jewish novelist. He also wrote successful novels on non-Jewish themes; and therefore was 
described as a popular novelist. He was never quite in the same class of Jewish novelists such as his American 
contemporaries Daniel Fuchs, Meyer Levin, and Isaac Rosenfeld.He used his Manchester background (as 
'Doomington') and Jewish themes in his novels, the first of which was published while he was still an undergraduate. 
He is now best remembered for his Doomington novels, Doomington being his fictional name for his home town of 
Manchester. en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Louis_Golding. Further information about Louis Golding can be found at this 
website and at other websites.His novel Magnolia Street was a bestseller of 1932; it is based on the Hightown area 
of Manchester, as it was in the 1920s. It takes place on a street divided into 'gentile' and 'Jewish' sides. It was a 1939 
play for Charles B. Cochran in an adaptation by Golding and A. E. Rawlinson, and was also filmed as Magnolia 
Street Story. Films were made of a few of his books. 
www.inpressbooks.co.uk/magnolia_street_golding_louis_i017696.aspx 
216 See Appendix-1      Louis Golding’s Writings; Pps.  
217 He was bright enough to win a scholarship to the prestigious Manchester Grammar School (http://www.mgs.org/), 
where he wrote poems, contributed to school magazine, and won literary awards. He started to write when he was 
quite young and some short stories on Jewish topics were published in the Manchester Guardian 
(http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/The_Guardian) in 1919. He received scholarships to Queen’s College, and Oxford in 
1914; where he studied history and classics. His studies interrupted by World War I. He was refused entry to Officers’ 
Training Corps; but served briefly as hospital orderly in York, and worked for YMCA in Greece and France. His 
service was cut short by bout of malaria. Then he returned to Oxford, in 1918; when he edited Queen’s College 
Miscellany. 
218 He was the son of poor Jewish parents. The family had recently immigrated to England from Cherkassy, Ukraine. 
He was born in the Jewish slum of Red Bank in the city. As a young boy, he spent a fortnight holiday in Jewish 
Children's Holiday Home in Deryshire and was quite homesick. His Mother was proud of his early attempts at writing; 
but his Father was indifferent to it He moved out of his parents' house, because of quarrels with his Father on the 
subject of Jewish piety. He went to live with his sister Edie, my Grandparents, on Sycamore Street, in Hightown. This 
street was different from all the other neighborhood streets because of the strict division between Jews (odd 
numbered houses) and Gentiles (even numbered houses). This distinction showed importance later on, when he 
became a writer. WK, p. 4-10  
219 Maurice Samuel (February 8, 1895 - May 4, 1972) was a Romanian-born British and American novelist, translator 
and lecturer.  He was a Jewish and Zionist intellectual. Most of his work concerns Judaism and the Jew's role in 
history and modern society, but he also wrote more conventional fiction He and his work won a acclaim in the Jewish 
community during his lifetime. (Maurice Samuel also wrote the nonfiction King Mob under the pseudonym "Frank K. 
Notch.") en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Maurice_Samuel. Mr. Samuel came to visit and because there was no room for him, 
he had to sleep in the bathtub. My Mother's memory. 
220 According to my Mother, this refers to Sycamore Street- the street where she grew up. According to DP, this refers 
to Bloomsbury Road, the street where her Grandmother Ginny Golding grew up. DP- 6/2/11 
221 Golding's views bridge the cultural gap between eastern European Jewish shtetl life and interwar British society. 
On one hand, he was a militant supporter of Jewish/non-Jewish intermarriage, of secular Judaism and religious 
freedom. At the same time his writing reveals a sustained belief in Jewish 'race' and Jewish spirituality. Golding's 
writing on 'race' received particular attention. Like so many other British Jews in the period, the author seems to have 
been caught between his desire to fight the racism of the Third Reich and his own confused 'racial' attitudes. Gavin 
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 Jack- (1899-1918225) He was also born in Manchester, England. My cousin Jackie 
(Jack David Marcus) is named after him. 
 
Jack Golding was an English soldier and was killed in battle226. The British Jewry Book of 
Honour confirms his service number and date of death as well stating that he was in the 1st 
and 7th Battalions of the Manchester Regiment. His home address is listed as being 19 
Sycamore Street.227 Apparently this was the address of his sister and brother- in-law: Edith 
(My Grandmother) and Zacharia Marcus. 
 He died at Flanders228 on April 5, 1918. He is buried at Gommecourt Wood New Cemetery 
Foncquevillers229. His death was also listed as a Jewish casuality.230 
 
His army certificates are in Appendix- 
 

2 A.231, 232 

 
 
 
 
 
                                                                                                                                       
Schaffer, Fighting Battles with History: The Novelist Louis Golding and the Story of the 'Doomington Wanderer' 
Immigrants & Minorities, Volume 24, Issue 1, 2006, Pages 74 - 99  
DOI: 10.1080/02619280600590266. 
http://www.informaworld.com//smpp/content~db=all.content=10.1080/0219280600590266 
222 He began traveling abroad on medical advice, in order to avoid another serious illness. He spent time in London 
visiting Italy (including Capri and Sicily with Norman Douglas and D.H. Lawrence), Switzerland, Egypt, Palestine, 
Morocco, United States, Germany, and Russia. His home was in London. http://www.eb.com 
223 I remember that my question then was what would he do about kosher food? My memory. 
224 www.bookrags.com/tandf/golding-louis-tf/ - United States 
225 According to JuddE’s “Family Tree” he died in 1917. 
226 Here is the information the battle: 
Foncquevillers was in British hands in 1915 and 1916. On July 1, 1916, Gommecourt Wood was attacked by the 46th 
(North Midland) Division, and the Southern part of the village by the 56th (London) Division. The attack met with 
temporary success, but could not be sustained; and Gommecourt remained a salient in the German line until the 27th 
February 1917, when it was evacuated. It was never retaken by the Germans; at the end of their offensive of March 
1918 it was just within the British lines. It was later adopted by the County Borough of Wolverhampton. This 
information was compiled by Harold Pollins. 
However he doesn't appear in the list of fallen at the Commonwealth War Graves Commission 
(http://www.cwgc.org/debt_of_honour.asp?menuid=14# ). I am currently trying to get him listed here. I am also trying 
to check to see if he is on the list of the deceased Jewish soldiers of WWI at the Jewish Military Museum in London 
(http://www.thejmm.org.uk/home) 
226 NW- 5/5/11; NW is the Museum Administrator, Jewish Military Museum, info@thejmm.org.uk, 020 8202 2323 ext 202  
227 NW- 5/5/11; NW is the Museum Administrator, Jewish Military Museum, info@thejmm.org.uk, 020 8202 2323 ext 
202  
228 Flanders field was the battlefront in Flanders during World War 1. Many British soldiers died there. Now a 
Memorial Museum is located there.( www.greatwar.co.uk/ypres.../museum-in-flanders-fields.htm) One of those British 
soldiers wrote a poem: “In Flanders Fields the Poppies Blow...” (wiki.answers.com › ... › War and Military History › 
World War 1) See Appendix 2  B, p. Because of this poem the poppy became the symbol for the memory of the 
WAR. The sight of these delicate, vibrant red flowers growing on the shattered ground caught the attention of a 
Canadian soldier by the name of John McCrae. He noticed how they had sprung up in the disturbed ground of the 
burials around the artillery position he was in. It was during the warm days of early May 1915 when he found himself 
with his artillery brigade near to the Ypres-Yser canal. He is believed to have composed a poem following the death 
of a friend at that time. The first lines of the poem have become some of the most famous lines written in relation to 
the First World War. (www.greatwar.co.uk/article/remembrance-poppy.htm) 
 229 This  information about the cemetery was received by RE, in a Personal Communication from Harold Pollins who 
compiled a list/ database of Jewish soldiers who died in both world wars He told her that this is now in the Jewish 
Military Museum in London. Foncquevillers is a village about 18 kilometres south-west of Arras on the D3. 
Gommecourt Wood New Cemetery is situated a little way south-east along the D6. A CWGC A signpost indicates the 
road at the junction near the post office in Foncquevillers and the Cemetery is on the right hand side of the road just 
before arriving at Gommecourt. The cemetery covers an area of 2,690 square meters and is enclosed by a rubble 
wall  (http://www.webmatters.net/cwgc/gommecourt_wd.htm;  
http://www.cwgc.org/search/cemetery_details.aspx?cemetery=31400&mode=1 There are now nearly 750, 1914-18 
war casualties commemorated in this site. Of these, nearly two-thirds are unidentified and special memorials are 
erected for 10soldiers from the United Kingdom, known or believed to be buried among them.                    
Gommecourt Wood New Cemetery was created, after the Armistice, by the concentration of graves from certain 
smaller burial grounds and from the battlefields of July 1916, March 1917, and March, April and August 1918. 
230 The Jewish Chronicle: 31.5.1918 . I have tried to copy the article, but have not succeeded. I have it in our 
computer. 
231 Appendix-1 A. Jack Golding (Z’L) pps. 
232 I received all of this information about Jack Golding, from Rosemary Eshel and thank her very much for her 
wonderful help. RE- 5/5/11 
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Marcus Family Background 

My Grandfather Zacharia Marcus immigrated to Manchester from Sveksna233, Lithuania with 
his family, when he was a young man.  Afterwards, members of the family immigrated to 
Chicago, and my Grandfather to New York. It seems that he and his sister Sarah came first to 
England.234 I loved him very much and can honestly say that I still miss him. He told me much 
about his childhood in Sveksna235. 
After my parents came on Aliyah, my Mother and I sometimes walked down a crowded street 
in Tel Aviv together and she would remark that she saw someone who looked like my 
grandfather. When she met Mordechai she remarked that she thought that my Grandfather 
would have liked him.  
He was a religious man, he prayed every day. He taught me the importance of being able to 
find the place in a Siddur (prayer book) and /or Chumash (Bible) by just listening. He did not 
like the idea of having pages announced or asking for the page number. I do not believe that 
he was very educated; but this did not bother me. I remember my Father once remarking that 
when my Grandfather met with 2 very educated Sveksna people236 he was happy to be with 
them; but he had nothing to add to their conversation. He was always a very ardent Zionist. 
He was very active in the Zionist Organization in and a member of the Zionist Hall237,238,  in 
Manchester. 
 
Moshe Marcus married Fagel239. They had 5 children: 
 1 Zacharia (@1872240-1957) He was born in Sveksna, Lithuania and lived in 
Manchester, England and then in New York241. He married Edith Golding242. They owned a 
candy store at one time in Manchester.243 He was carpenter, by trade. 

2 Lena (1876244) She was born in Sveksna and immigrated with her family to 
Manchester.  She married Victor Levinson. They lived in Chicago. They had 2 children: 

1. Ann Wagner  
2. Chester Levinson245  

3 Sarah (1881246) She was born in Sveksna and immigrated with her family to 
Manchester. She married Max Ripkin in Manchester247. They immigrated to Chicago248, USA. 
They had 4 children: 

1. Hyman  
2. Louis (Max249)  

                                                
233 en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Švėkšna - Cached - Similar; www.jewishgen.org/Litvak/HTML/OnlineJournals/sveksna.htm 
- I wrote this article and since then have done more research on Sveksna. 
234 SZ- 28/3/11; My memory 
235 He told me of the physical beauty of Sveksna and of how  well the Jewish community there was organized. 
236 My grandfather met occasionally with Dr. Margolis (a children's doctor) and Dr. Raison (a historian) on Eastern 
Parkway, in the Crown Heights neighborhood of Brooklyn. My memory 
237 My Mother's memory. 
238 My Mother's memory. He was always a big Zionist. He had much love for the old Zionism and for the new State of 
Israel. My memory 
239 She died in Manchester England. Most of the family had already immigrated to Chicago and my grandfather to 
New York, when she died. My Mother's memory 
240 My Mother claimed that the date of his birth was constantly changed so that he would not be recruited into the 
army in Lithuania. My Mother's memory 
241 Zachariah came to America in 1922 and stayed with Fred Golding. (The J form Julius-Judah probably looked like 
an F; ESTHER) "I could not believe that he left our grandmother with young children. My dad was only 13." He came 
with 60 dollars which was a lot of money in those years. He was a second class citizen on the ship-which was good 
because he had his own cabin. The information is from www.ellisisland.org/. MP-21/1/11 
Zacharia Marcus, age 46, occupation: cabinet maker, arrived in Ellis Island on May 20, 1922 on board the Scythia 
from Liverpool.  His origin was Shvcksky, Russia.  He was 5-5, had brown hair and brown eyes.  He was going to visit 
his brother-in-law, Mr. F. Golding  at 180 Beach 64th St., Arverne, L.I.  LL- 5/9/2008 
242 See Golding Family: Edith, for family details. 
243 My Mother's memory 
244 SZ- 10/3/11 
245 SZ-20/2/08 
246 SZ- 10/3/11 
247 Here is the documentation of their marriage: United Kingdom Marriage Records Search Results 
JCR-UK (Jewish Community Records) www.jewishgen.org/JCR-UK/ 
 

Manchester 06-Aug-1903 Max RIPKIN Sarah MARCUS 

 
248 en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Chicago 

http://webcache.googleusercontent.com/search?q=cache:1ZaOQaIg2G0J:en.wikipedia.org/wiki/%C5%A0v%C4%97k%C5%A1na+Sveksna&cd=1&hl=en&ct=clnk&gl=il&source=www.google.co.il�
http://www.google.co.il/search?hl=en&rlz=1T4ADFA_enIL412&q=related:en.wikipedia.org/wiki/%25C5%25A0v%25C4%2597k%25C5%25A1na+Sveksna&tbo=1&sa=X&ei=fuueTYamJMW1hAfErJSOBQ&ved=0CB4QHzAA�
http://www.ellisisland.org/�


 20 

3. Julius250 married Mary. They had 2 children: 
1) Carol 
2) Barry  (1952) 

 
4. Fannie251 

 
4 Janie252- (Janny, Jenny, Hika-Ida)253, 254(1887) She was born in Sveksna and immigrated 
with her family to Manchester.255 She married Sam256 Stollman257, in 1910258. They had 2 
daughters:  

 1. Faye She married Ben Wagner: She had 2 daughters: 
1) Marcia Sommers (1941)259She had a son:  
 2) Jeffery (@1946) 

2. Ella260 (@1912261.-2007) married Dave Schwab262.263 They had 3 
daughters:  

1) Sharon264 (1942265) She married Don Ziminda (1948266) in 1978.267 
He is a sports writer.268 She volunteers in the Old Age Home that her Mother 
was in.269  She has 2 sons from her first marriage270:  

                                                                                                                                       
249 AG-23/7/11 
250 AG- 23/7/11 
251 SZ-20/2/08 
252Information about Janie from her grand daughter Anita: "I know that my bubbie never worked, I don't know 
how her English was or if she knew how to write in English. I believe Jennie came from a religious home, kept Kosher 
but was not ultra Orthodox as I can tell by their clothing. My Zaydie taught my mother the Hebrew alphabet and she 
could read a bit. Before marriage she lived at home with her parents in Manchester. I guess the economic 
background was the same as your grandfathers, growing up. When my grandparents married they were poor. When 
the depression came things were even worse. My mother told me my bubbie rented her wedding dress. They were 
never by any means well off. During the depression they rented out a bedroom to a boarder, it seemed as if they 
lived hand to mouth. My Zadie was a carpenter ;and I know that when he was out of work my mother left high school 
after completeing a two year course, and got a job to help out. Victor Levinson, was able to get my Zaydie a job with 
the Chicago Transit Authority ,eventually". AG-13/3/11 For the above reason Vicki, is named after him. My memory 
253. According to Sharon, her name was Ida; but was changed to Janie when she arrived in the USA. SZ- 10/3/11 
254 Anita went to Ellis Island in the spring of 2010. She found documents under the name of Janie Marcus. "I and 
Howard also found my grandfathers document but the dates did not make sense. According to my mother Ella, her 
Zadie arrived first and sent for my bubbie. The documents showed her arriving earlier than him. Maybe there was 
another Janice Marcus from England!” AG- 2/2/11 
My mother told me that my Zadie who immigrated from Latvia to Manchester and then to Chicago, 
did not care for American women. He started a correspondence with Janie, and sent for her. My mother said there 
was a sister (Sarah?) already in Chicago so my bubbie felt that if the relationship between her and my Zaydie didn't 
work out, she could visit her sister, so the trip would not be for nothing. It did work out. AG- 5/2/2011. 
255 Information from Anita: "My mother told us about how bubbie was a fearful person, stemming from the pogroms. 
She mentioned how gentiles would throw rocks at her on Christain holidays. AG-5/2/11 
256 He immigrated from Latvia to Manchester and then to Chicago. AG- 2/2/11; AG_27/7/11 
257 Relatives: Sid and Joe Goodman, who were cousin Lil's brothers. They had a cousin Rita who visited from 
England. AG- 6/2/2011, VSH- 4/2/11.This family was also from Manchester. VSH- 4/2/11 
258 SZ- 10/3/11 
259 She was the first Grandchild.  AG- 5/2/2011 
260 Ella and my Mother were very close. AG- 6/5/08. My Mother went to the World Fair 
(en.wikipedia.org/wiki/World's_fair) in Chicago, in 1939. The distance did not bother them. They corresponded all 
through their lives. Ella and Dave came to NY to see my parents off, when they came on Aliyah to Israel , in 1965. 
When I was young, I wrote to Vicki as a pen pal. Now I correspond with Sharon, Vicki and Anita; and I enjoy this 
correspondence very much. My memory 
261 SZ- 30/7/11 
262 This was not his family name. When he arrived in the USA, the customs officer asked him for his name. He gave 
the name of an American friend; since he did not understand the question. Therefore he and his brother had different 
family names. Anita's memory.  He took the name of a relative of theirs. SZ- 30/7/11. Vicki heard from her Father 
(and his sisters Ruth and Genevieve) that the family name had been Monas. (She looked this name up in the 
phonebook when she was a kid.) Her Grandfather changed the name to Schwab because of the idea of being in a 
new country. The new country equated with acquiring a new name. Her Father guessed (perhaps he was kidding) 
that his Father had chosen the name Schwab, after the steel tycoon Charles Schwab, to invite prosperity in the new 
country. VH-23/7/11 
263  He loved to play and read to his daughters. AG- 10/1/10 
264 Sharon goes to visit her son and his family in Chicago about 3 times a year. SZ- 18/6/11.They speak on the 
telephone once a week. SZ- 25/2/10. She enjoys he "bubby duties" immensely. She is very active in the local Jewish 
temple. SZ- 28/5/11 
265 AG- 23/7/11 
266 SZ-30/6/11 
267 This is her second marriage. SZ- 28/3/11 
268 SZ- 5/6/10 
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 1- Steven (1962)271 He lives in Los Angeles272. He works at 
Jaguar dealership.273 

 2- Michael (1965)274 He married Nancy. She is a librarian.275 
They live in the Chicago area. They have 2 sons276: 

  1, Mathew (@1999) 
  2, Sean (@2001) 
   
2) Vicki Harrison (@1945) She is divorced. She lives in Portland277, 

Oregon278, USA.  
3) Anita279 (1952)280  She married Howard Gutterman281. They live in 

Ontario, Canada. Anita works as a substitute teacher. They enjoy going on 
trips.282 They have 2 daughters: 

 1- Eden(1985)283 She is now teaching in a Jewish Day 
School, in  Vancouver, Canada284. 

 2- Shayla285 (1988286) She is now finishing her University 
studies. 

 
5. Anna (d. 1919) 287.288 She lived in England and came to Chicago to visit. 

 
Related289 families are: 
A. Chinn290:   

1.Jesse She married  Julius Simon. They lived in Chicago. They had 1 daughter: 
 1) Leah Anne- Liane (@1938) Liane was born in Chicago. She now possibly 

lives on the west coast of the USA.291   

                                                                                                                                       
269 SZ- 7/5/10 
270 She has twin nieces and a nephew from he first marriage, so they all get together (17 counting her brother-in-law) 
for a family dinner at an outdoor restaurant. She started the tradition three years ago when her beloved sister-in-law 
died and intends on making this a yearly practice. She refers to all the children of her nephew and nieces, which 
include a 6 month old darling girl as her grand or great nieces.  Sharon is the only one on both sides who have males 
as all the rest of her great nieces are girls. SZ- 30/7/11 
271 SZ- 5/6/10 
272 He is lucky that he lives just 10 minutes from where he works so he doesn't have the awful long commute that 
most Angelenos suffer through daily. By way of his job he meets actors, sports figures and others connected with 
show biz. SZ- 5/6/10 
273 SZ- 28/7/11 
274 SZ- 25/2/10 
275 She works in the town where she grew up. When she cannot pick up the boys from school her mother does so. 
SZ- 2/8/10 
276 Sharon adores her Grandchildren. AG- 10/1/10 
277 www.portlandonline.com/ 
278 VH-23/7/11, AG- 23/7/11 
279 Anita met a few members of our Family. She met Danny when she visited Boston and he was studying there. AG- 
13/5/08 She told me that she was once in NY and was invited to My Uncle Lionel and Auntie Jeanette's house for 
Shabbat. She was once shown a picture of my cousin Marcia and remembered how pretty she was. My memory. 
280Anita is named after our Great Aunt Anna  AG-5/2/2011 
281 Howard is from Montreal. AG- 4/6/08 
282 SZ- 28/3/11. They were in Israel 2 years ago and I so enjoyed meeting them. SZ- 4/10/09, My memory 
283 AG- 23/7/11 
284AG- 4/3/11; SZ- 13/2/10 
285 She visited Israel in 2009 and I was thrilled to meet her. My memory 
286 AG- 23/7/11 
287 She was the youngest, and came from England to visit. Ella remembered her staying at their house. She may 
have be was evidently in her early twenties. She died while there in 1919 of the flu epidemic that killed thousands. 
AG- 5/2/2011, SZ- 10/3/11 
288 AG- 5/2/2011 
289 My cousins and myself do not know exactly how we are related.  
290 I believe they were also from Sveksna and cousins. They are not related to the other Simon Family. My memory 
291 Liane participated in the Young Judea Youth program in Israel in about 1957. She had a serious boy friend in 
Israel, who was from England. He returned to England and was killed in a traffic accident. The same year her Mother 
died and her Father Julian married her aunt Ray. This all was hard on her. She returned to Chicago and finished her 
college education. She spent a year in New-York, before coming on Aliyah. She then worked in the library of the 
Jewish Theological Seminary (www.jtsa.edu/). She came on Aliyah and lived in Jerusalem and afterwards she lived  
in Be'er Sheva (en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Beersheba) for she wanted to live in a place where she cold felt that she was 
helping with the development of our  country. She worked there for Mekorot (www.mekorot.co.il/eng). She then lived 
in Tel-Aviv (en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Tel_Aviv). She returned to the USA, married and had a son named Itai. My memory 
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2. Ray-Rachel She married Julius Simon about a year after her sister died. They lived 
in Chicago. 
B. Simon. They also came from Sveksna. They immigrated to Passaic, New Jersey. They 
were evidently cousins of my Grandfather's. 
They had 2 sons: (twins) They now live in Los Angeles, California 
 1. Edgar (@1920)292. He married Marilyn. He was a lawyer. She makes Jewish 
artifacts. They have both been hospitalized lately293. They have 1 son: 
  )Lowell294 
 2. Gilbert (@1920) He married Donna. 
C. Sharpe. (Harry and Sid [a woman]) They were a married couple who lived in uptown 
Manhattan. They enjoyed having contact with our family. He had a very special occupation. 
He was a photographer and owned a pony. We used to travel allover New York City, by 
subway, with his pony. He would photograph children sitting on the pony.  She worked in an 
office in Manhattan. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

                                                
292 My Mother kept in contact with Edgar and Gilbert. A while after she died, I happened to notice Edgar's address in 
her address book. I wrote him and this was the beginning of a wonderful correspondence. He was interested in my 
research and sent me some family stories from Sveksna. He was interested in my studying Yiddish and put us on the 
mailing list of the Yiddish Book Center (www.yiddishbookcenter.org/). He and Marilyn sent me interestingnewspaper  
clippings, which were of Jewish interest and they also sent information about Marilyn's artwork, and volunteer work 
for Hadassah (www.hadassah.org). One very interesting article which he sent me dealt with the question of if old and 
sick Nazi war criminals should be punished. They are now over 90 year s old and very weak. I receive information 
about them by way of Sharon (SZ). My memory 
293 Edgar fell down a flight of stairs in April, 2000. He was in a partial body cast and in rehab.  He damaged his 
cervical vertebrae and also had a head injury. In the mean time Marilyn has been in the hospital with a chemical 
imbalance and pneumonia.   
They both returned home and have domestic  help .SZ- 26/6/10 
294 He takes very protective care of his parents. SZ- 28/3/11 

http://support.yiddishbookcenter.org/site/R?i=4tolk4J3ncdX5ivcbWxB4Q..�
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The Zacharia  and Edith Marcus Family295 

It is interesting to note that my Grandparents sisters (some are the names of my 
Grandmother's sister-in-laws) had the same names: Sarah, Lena, Janey-Jenny, Anna.296 
 
My Grandfather Zacharia came first to the USA. Then my Mother Nettie, came. She said that 
she would go to the beach in Far Rockaway and look at the ocean and say to herself that her 
Mother was not that far away- just on the a side of the ocean. Then Edith came with Lionel, 
Norman and Frances297. At first they lived in Far Rockaway. Afterwards, my Grandfather got a 
job in a carpentry shop298 on Nostrand Avenue corner Pacific Avenue (border of the Crown 
Heights neighborhood) in Brooklyn, New York so they moved to Brooklyn. They had to be 
near the Long Island railroad, for my Aunt Frances (Dede) was still attending Far Rockaway 
High School. They then lived on New York Avenue. Later on they moved to the 961 Lincoln 
Place apartment. This apartment was in a 2 family house on top of a Bohacks grocery store. 
This apartment became known to the family as "the house". 
 
This house had a big brown wall with no windows on the ground floor. Neighborhood boys 
would play hand ball against this wall. Most of them were Catholic and attended St. Gregory's 
Parochial School299. Through the years, my grandparents suffered a few broken windows. My 
Grandfather tried to speak to the boys, to their parents, and finally decided to go to the 
Church. He wore a grey fedora hat. It was obvious that he was Jewish. The reply that he 
received was "boys will be boys". He took this as an Anti-Semitic reply. His comment was 
"What should I have expected; the Church is the same her as it was in Sveksna."300  
 
In about 1950 they got a Motorola television. My grandfather liked to watch boxing. One day 
Frances came into "the house" and said there was going to be a very good movie on one 
night that week. The movie was the "Caine Mutainy". My Grandparents put up notes for 
themselves all over the house to remind them to watch the movie. My mother heard about his 
and remarked that they probably would not understand it at all.301 
 
My Grandmother told many stories of when she was a young girl. She told me about how 
hard they all worked to clean for Passover, She said that she even had to kasher (make it 
kosher for Passover) her tongue.  
 
She had a hatred and/or fear of the Russian peasants. 
When I was a little girl, my Grandmother was once very happy that she found a little box of 
sunflower seeds in a candy store and bought them for 2 cents. She said she was going to 
plant them. She knew a neighbor who lived in a private house across the street302 and asked 
permission to plant them in his garden. I wanted to go with her. She did not allow me to, she 
explained that he was Russian and did not like Jews. It was difficult for me to understand this 
concept. She said that I could go with her up to the fence of his house; but must wait outside 
and not pester her. She spoke to him in a foreign language- Russian. He answered her in the 
same language; but did not smile at her. He did not seem to be too friendly. I remember what 
he looked like. He had a big nose and wore a big hat (something like a cowboy hat). She took 
a jug of water from her house every day (she carried it down the stairs and across the street) 

                                                
295 My memory 
296 My Mother's memory 
297 February, 1926. Ship Manifest "Carmania" 
298 When I was quite young, before my grandfather retired, my Mother once took me to visit him at work. I remember 
the smell of the wood. This smell always brings back fond memories. My Mother once moved the furniture in our 
apartment. Perhaps her goal was to have an empty place (less than 20 centimeters- 7 inches in length) on one of the 
walls. She promptly had my Grandfather make us a small table to put there. It was made of black wood and about as 
high as it was wide. The telephone was then kept on this table. My memory 
299 The school was located next to the Church, on Brooklyn Avenue corner St. Johns Place. This was 1 short block 
from "the house". My memory 
300 My memory 
301 My memory 
302 This was when they lived at 961 Lincoln Place, corner Brooklyn Ave., Brooklyn, New York. The Russian man lived 
across the street in the first private house on the eastern side of Brooklyn Ave. 
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and went to water her sunflower seeds. She succeeded in growing sunflowers like what they 
had in Cherkassy.303 She was quite happy. 
 
I also remember that she came to visit us early one Shabbat morning. We lived304 in walking 
distance from my grandparents. This is about the only time I remember her coming to visit; 
particularly a spontaneous visit. I was outside playing, and there she was walking up the 
street. I remember what dress she was wearing. When she approached me she remarked 
about how nice it was to see all the Chassidim (Ultra-Orthodox Jews) going in their Shabbat 
dress to pray on this Shabbat morning. She said it was just like in Cherkassy. Even though 
this was so near her house, she did not see the Chasidim pass by on Shabbat. They had to 
pass our house on their way from the Albany Ave. projects (apparently to the Bobeve Shul [on 
Brooklyn Ave./corner Sterling Place], the Lubuvitch Shul [on Eastern Parkway near Kingston 
Ave.] the Hungarian Shul [on Eastern Parkway near Brooklyn Ave.] or others  that were 
located near our house). 
She knew a bit about Jewish subjects. She once explained to me that in her opinion; if we had 
a Sanhedrin305 today (the early 1950's) we would probably be allowed to use electricity on 
Shabbat.306 She was a religious woman; but only went to the Synagogue for Yizkor307 and on 
the High-Holidays. If my memory serves me well, I remember her praying at home from an old 
Siddur on Shabbatot. She was very Zionistically inclined and would have liked to visit the new 
State of Israel. Yet, she realized that this was more than a dream. She respected and 
honored people who had been here. She was very proud that her brother Louis was one of 
them. She once remarked that she would have liked to live here, in the Jewish State; but she 
also wanted to be near her immediate family. I think that she could be depicted as the perfect 
Jewish Grandmother, in regards to appearance, language, and way of life. My Grandparents 
spoke Yiddish between themselves. I suppose they sometimes spoke it to their children also; 
however my Mother always said that she could understand this language but could not speak 
it. 
 Most of my memories of her are of her cooking in the kitchen or serving food in the dining-
room. She was an excellent cook of food from the Jewish cuisine. She spent much time 
cooking.308 She even made noodles309 by herself. Once my Mother told her that it was 
possible to buy very very thin noodles. Her answer was "so I'll make them thinner". She made 
them by rolling the dough out on a cutting-board, cutting them and putting them into the soup-
one by one.  
She knew how to be strict with her grandchildren, when we made too much noise or too big a 
mess. Then she would express with a Yiddish phrase. She used to call her grand-daughters 
(Marcia and myself "gutte meidel" (good girl) and sheine meidel"(pretty girl). One time she 
referred to me as the good girl. I got angry and said that I wanted to be the pretty one. Her 
reply was "think and then tell me and yourself which one is better".310 She used to get a bit 
angry when all of us, or some of us Grandchildren were together and we made a lot of noise 
and a bit of a mess.311 She loved her entire family very much. She loved her sister Sarah's 

                                                
303 My memory. When I researched Cherkassy, I learned that sunflowers are one of the leading agricultural products 
there.  
304 We then lived at 1125 Sterling Place, (between Kingston Ave. and Hampton Place/Albany Ave.), which was about 
a 10 minute walk from my Grandparents house. 
305 en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Sanhedrin 
306 Until recently, I always thought that this was her own idea. Then, I heard a lecture given by Yoske Achituv 
(http://he.wikipedia.org/wiki/אחיטוב_יוסף). He made a comment about if there would be a Sanhedrin, there would be 
discussions and decisions about Halachot (en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Halakha) pertaining to today. I asked him for more 
information. He wrote that Rabbi Fishman (en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Yehuda_Leib_Maimon) had written an entire book 
about this subject; fir he did not feel that the Chief Israeli rabbinate that HaRav Kook 
(en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Abraham_Isaac_Kook) had formed would have the authority to renew Halachot. YA-22/7/11 
307 judaism.about.com/od/prayersworship/ 
308 I sometimes remember a lot of kitchen skills that I learned from watching her.  She sometimes, but rarely, let me 
help. I am very pleased with myself, if I make something that tastes like her food did. My memory 
309 She would make the dough, roll it out on a small cutting board, cut the long noodles, pick them up (one by one) 
and place them gently into the soup. My memory 
310 Recently I had a similar conversation with our grandson Yoni. I said that he and his brothers are sweet, charming 
and good. He is evidently smarter than I was. He said he wanted to be the good one. Maybe this is a conversation 
that every grandmother has with her grandchildren? 
311 Danny and I used to enjoy rolling off of hassocks and falling over into the floor. We laughed at ourselves; until she would 
shout at us "You are making a tumult (noise)". My memory  
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daughter Nettie very much.312 A big picture of her Father and Grandfather (Zeidie Monash 
and Zeidie Feivel [Philip]) hung in the dining room of "the house". She was very extremely 
proud of 2 family members:  
  1. Her brother 
  2. Her brother Julius' grandson 

Louis Golding 
Martin Golding

My Grandparents were never rich, or well-off people. I feel that they could even be described 
as from the poorer sector of our people. They worked at various jobs in Manchester. My 
Grandmother knew how to sew.  They had a Singer sewing machine in their house on Lincoln 
Place. My Grandmother did make a few things for the house. However my Mother and Aunt 
Frances were into buying and always told her that things could be bought very cheaply.  

313 

At one time, in Manchester they owned and operated a candy store. It is possible that they 
then made at least some of the candies themselves. Part of my Grandmother's cooking 
included rock-candy with a string running through it, and Ingber (a sweet carrot treat (which 
was cut into portions on a cutting board). It seems that they decided to immigrate to America 
for economic reasons. My mother once was thinking out loud about her parents' economic 
situation and asked whoever she was talking to "what is better, if they could be self 
supporting or the fact that they have sons who are doing well and are able to help support 
them?" 
They were a religious family and gave their children a proper religious education. I have the 
copy of the letter In Hebrew, which my Uncle Norman wrote to my Mother in America before 
his Bar Mitzvah. He was excited about getting long trousers. My Uncle Lionel told me about 
his Hebrew teacher. He was very impressed that this man was actually a Rabbi; but was 
addressed formerly as "Mister".314 My Mother had a Hebrew teacher called Mr. Rivlin. He was 
from the Rivlin315 Family and had come from Israel to teach Hebrew in Manchester for a few 
years. She taught me a few of the songs that he had taught his pupils. My Mother managed to 
locate 1of his sons, after my parents came on Aliyah, and the 2 couples became friends. 
 
My grandfather read the Yiddish Newspapers everyday. He kept on changing his mind as to 
which was better: the "Forward" or the "Tag". Sometimes I saw my Grandmother read them 
also. She had glassed for reading and for cleaning chickens.316 
 
Our Grandparents home "the house" was always a center for our family to meet. This was 
especially so on Shabbatot and Holidays. My Uncles and families lived out of town and my 
Aunt did also after her marriage. We lived the closest, about a 10 minute walk. Therefore their 
house was actually a second home to me. After a certain age, I would go there myself. I 
would spend summer mornings there for it was cooler than our house. I liked to have my 
Grandfather's attention. If my grandmother would start to yell at him to help her, I understood 
(after a short while) that I had to keep myself busy.  
 
When we would get a telegram after 7 PM317 we knew it was bad news. These telegrams 
were usually from the Family in Chicago. The telegrams usually told of a death in the family. 
Once we got such a telegram with good news: SHARON was to get married. 
 
They began to get older and it was hard for them to walk long distances. Therefore they could 
not attend Jackie's Bar Mitzvah. The Synagogue was a distance from my Uncle's house. 
Jackie therefore recorded (at his last rehersal) the reading of his Parsha (Torah reading for 
the week of his Bar Mitzvah for them). My Uncle Norman said that this would probably be 
better than the actual reading. My Mother wrote his Bar Mitzvah speech and or she or Jackie 
read it to them. I felt so sorry for them to have to stay home by themselves, when the rest of 
                                                
312 My Mother said that she may have even loved her more than she loved her own children. She hadn't seen her 
since she left England for New York. Nettie Goldstone died a few months after my Grandmother. My Mother said that 
her Mother probably needed her niece to be with her. My Mother said that she had heard of similar stories, where a 
person who dies tries to take someone they love very much to them.. My memory 
313 See , p. Martin became a Professor of Juris Prudence at Columbia University at a very young age. One day he 
had a bit of free time before his 10 AM class. He went into the library. At 4 PM, one of his students entered the library 
and came over to him to ask how he was feeling. He had become involved in a book and had forgotten his class and 
the time. My Grandmother loved to tell this story. My memory 
314 I think that this can be compared to my Mother's attitude of keeping Jewishness inside the home, house and family. Perhaps it 
was a trait of Manchester Jews or of everyone at this particular period. 
315 www.rivlinfamily.com/ 
316 It seems that I have inherited this from her. 
317 There was then such a superstition. My memory 
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us were altogether. They were evidently married 45 or 50 years and someone suggested 
making them an anniversary party. My Mother or my Aunt remarked that this would be 
ridiculous since they barely spoke to each other; except for important things. They understood 
that this way they argued less. 
 
My Grandfather was hospitalized in the Brooklyn Jewish Hospital318. He was very impressed 
for by what he was served for breakfast- rice puffs and wheat puffs. He asked the nurse to 
give him a few. He opened up a paper napkin and let me taste one. This was evidently the 
first time he had tasted dry cereal and the first time he had not eaten pumpernickel (black 
bread) for his breakfast. 
 
My Grandfather telephoned one evening to say that my Grandmother had evidently fainted. 
He did not know how to pick her up from the position she was in or move her. My Mother told 
him that we would be there very soon; but he should ask the Negro neighbors from upstairs to 
come to his aid for the next minutes could be important. They were so nice about helping out. 
My mother told my Father to run over there and that we would follow. She telephoned her 
siblings. My Grandmother was in and out of the hospital for a while. She died early on a 
Shabbat morning. The Family was called to the hospital. This was 2 days after Chanuka. The 
nurse who was on duty the night before said that my Grandmother had told her the night 
before about the most beautiful sunset she had just seen (probably the beginning of the 
Shabbat). Since then, whenever I see a beautiful sunset on Shabbat, it scares me. My Mother 
went in the next morning; but my Grandmother could not speak. Afterwards she told the nurse 
that she cold not speak for she had tears in her throat. So many people came to the Shiva: 
Family, friends, and people that may Grandparents had helped in various ways319. This taught 
me that one doesn't have to give charity with money; but can do so with good deeds. 
 
It was decided that my Grandfather could not stay in "the house" alone. My Aunt Frances and 
Uncle Joe then lived in an apartment Hotel on Central Park west. She rented an apartment for 
him in the building. He was bored during the long days. He came to live with us. We had a 3 
room small apartment and gave him the bedroom. It was very crowded, but he was in his own 
neighborhood. My Uncle Lionel built a room for him in the basement of their house, in Franklin 
Square, Long Island. He was alone most of the day. My Uncle Norman gave him a room in 
his house in Mount Vernon, New York. He was alone for a good part of the day.  He now had 
4 homes. One day my Auntie Rose came home and saw that he didn't feel well. They decided 
that he could not be by himself and to put him into a nursing home in the area. I wrote him 
letters everyday. The women in the home liked him and tried to sneak into his room. This 
made him angry. We went to visit him one Sunday, My mother thought that he wasn’t to 
attentive and said that I should understand that I should stop writing him letters. He heard, 
turned to me and told me that he hadn't received a letter for a few days. He died a few days 
before Pesach; about 4 months after my Grandmother. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

                                                
318 This hospital seems to now be an apartment house. wikimapia.org/.../Former-Brooklyn-Jewish-Hospital This was 
the closest hospital and the family doctor, Dr. Solaway thought it the proper place for his ailment. Mark 
and I were born there. My memory. 
319 Organizations or by way of neighborly friendship and giving the needed aid at the specific time. 
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The Herschman Family 

My parents were always Religious Zionists. My Father was a true Zionist and lover of the land 
and State of Israel.320 My Mother wanted my first memory to be the UN vote about the State 
of Israel.321 She influenced one of my friends very much, and my friend remembers this up to 
today.322 My Mother tried to hide these facts of what she was inside her home, and keep her 
religion and Zionism, behind the closed door of the house.   I could not understand that if this 
was the way to be, why it had to be sort of a secret. I can think of one situation where she 
was perhaps correct. 
 
I was in seventh grade in PS 167. There was a parents-teachers meeting one afternoon and 
school was closed for the pupils. My Mother went to speak to my teacher. I anxiously awaited 
her return; being sure that she would return and say the usual: that the teacher was very 
happy with me. She returned and was angry. The teacher had asked her what kind of an 
upbringing I was receiving at home. He was referring to the fact that when he asked me what 
I wanted to do with my life, I had told him that I planned to live in Israel. He said that I was not 
a proper American girl and had no respect for what the wonderful country I lived in. I now 
think that both the teacher and my Mother were right; but I would be in such a situation again, 
I would do so again! 
 
A while later My Mother remarked to me that my interest in Zionism323,  was such that I 
studied it as if it was a subject in a university course. Now Zionism is a University course. 
When I studied in the Ashkelon branch of Bar Ilan University324 and in the Israeli Open 
University325, for my BA, among the course that I took were courses on the history of 
Zionism.326 
 
We lived in a small apartment. The house was full of books. Before my parents came on 
Aliyah, there were about 6000 books. 
 
We were economically considered lower middle class and as far as income charts went, we 
were considered on the highest level of the lowest class. My parents tried to hide this fact; but 
we all knew it and lived accordingly. I never remember buying anything without looking at the 
price tag first. When I was young, I wanted to go to sleep-over camp. My Uncle Norman gave 
my Mother enough money to pay for about half of it. 
 
MY Father worked for the OPA327 during and after the WAR. He then started his own import-
export business; but this could be considered more of a hobby than a livelihood. Therefore he 
also worked in the Lubavitch328 high school as the English secretary. He regarded this as a 
job and not an affiliation. When our Sterling Place apartment house began to have Negro 
tenants, my parents decided that it was time to move. They were not against living in the 
vicinity of Negroes; but were afraid of who might linger in the vicinity of the house. They were 
lucky enough to find an apartment that they could afford in the same neighborhood329. The 
men that worked with my father in the Lubavitch office helped with the moving. My Mother 
remarked that it was obvious that they were his and our best friends. My Mother spoke often 

                                                
320 If I have to summarize my Father's life, I say "He loved his family, his religion and Israel". Please 
see my article: My Father Oscar Herschman (ZL) and the Story of his Family  
http://www.shtetlinks.jewishgen.org/Vitsyebsk/ 
321 en.wikipedia.org/.../United_Nations_Partition_Plan_for_Palestine, www.mfa.gov.il/mfa/go.asp?MFAH00ps0;          
I have always been sorry; but I honestly do not remember this. However I can picture where the radio 
was and where we were sitting in kitchen when we listened to the vote. 
322 "… a memory of your parents inviting my family to your apartment and they had a cake to celebrate 
the fifth birthday of Israel." HR-6/6/11 
323 www.jewishvirtuallibrary.org/jsource/Zionism/zionism.html 
324 en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Bar Ilan_University 
325 www-e.openu.ac.il/ 
326 My memory 
327 en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Office_of_Price_Administration 
328 www.chabad.org/  
329 Eastern Parkway/corner Bedford Avenue, Crown Heights, Brooklyn, New York 

http://www.shtetlinks.jewishgen.org/Vitsyebsk/family_stories�
http://www.mfa.gov.il/mfa/go.asp?MFAH00ps0�
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about getting a job; but always, after a calculation decided that she would not be earning that 
much, in the long run.330 
 
My parents gave charity. At one time, my Mother was annoyed, for she claimed she was 
saving as much as she could to give charity. This caused her to but cheaper food. Then she 
saw people who she knew were receiving charity, buying better products.  
 
My parents were very moral people.  Yet, now thinking about this, there is 1 fact that may not 
be considered too moral. This is that they felt themselves superior to certain groups of people, 
particularly groups of Jews who came from particular places such as Galicia, Poland, 
Hungary and Romania. When they became friendly with people from these places they stated 
that their friends were exceptions. They liked oriental Jews331,332 when they were in America 
and afterwards, when they lived in Israel. I can, more or less, understand the basis for my 
Father's way of reasoning, since he came from the family of the Vilna Gaon. His complaints 
were on an intellectual basis. The only way that I can understand my Mother feeling this way 
is based on something that I once learned about English Jewry. This is that the Jews who 
already lived in England felt themselves superior to the newcomers and didn't have a nice 
attitude toward them.333 
  
I remember my Father enquiring about prices of Jewish Day Schools, even before I entered 
first grade. They were out of my parents' economic budgets I was sent to the schools that we 
could afford. I received a scholarship/ reduction for them. I attended both Public school and 
Hebrew School, and then I attended Erasmus High School and Marshalliah Hebrew High 
School.  I was religious and very Zionistic. This already put me in a special category. I was 
very happy when my Father explained to his good friend Mr. Harelick about me not fitting into 
the American youth culture and Mr. Harelick culture suggested that I go to Bnei Akiva334. 
 
One Friday night-Erev Shabbat, there was a big celebration-Simcha for ALL

 

 of the Jewish 
women in the neighborhood. There was a special guest and he was going to speak in the 
Chovevei Torah Synagogue335. He was Menachem Begin336. The Synagogue must have been 
full. For there was no getting into it, or even near it. The street was full of women. When he 
walked by the Ultra Orthodox women were kissing his coat, as if he was more than a holy 
man. My Mother and I were part of the crowd that demonstrated that this great welcoming for 
him. This also proved that all the Jews can be united. 

Now as a Mother I understand my parents feeling when I was adamant about coming to Israel 
after graduating from High School. Yet they had taught me that Zionism was supreme. 
 
I participated in Bnei Akiva Hachshara in 1962 and came on Aliyah in 1964. Then my parents 
realized that only Israel was the place where I could be. 
 
My parents came337 on Aliyah in January 1965. At first they lived in the Academic Hostel in 
Ashkelon338. This was hard physically for them in a 1 room apartment, which all their 

                                                
330 My memory 
331 www.britannica.com/EBchecked/topic/.../Oriental-Jews 
332 My Father was very impressed by their historical background and the high level of their learning. 
The fact that not everyone felt this important bothered him greatly. My memory. 
333 My memory.  This fact is discussed in  - Lloyd P. Gartner's books: The Jewish Immigrant in England 1870-1914  , 
George Allen & Unwin Ltd, .London, 1960, pps  449-51; and in American and British Jews in the Age of the Great 
Migration, Vallentine Mitchell, London, 2009, p. 90. RE-12/911  Lloyd Gartner (http://h-net.msu.edu/cgi-
bin/logbrowse.pl?trx=vx&list=H-Judaic&month=1103&week=a&msg=mC5kBUXVhtnUlgt55RZy5A)  
334 www.bneiakiva.net/ 
335 This was located on Eastern Parkway/corner Albany Avenue, Crown Heights, Brooklyn, New York. 
My memory 
336 At this time he was a leading member of the Knesset (Israeli Parliament) 
www.nobelprize.org/nobel_prizes/peace/.../begin-bio.html 
337 Before they left New York they spent 2 weeks in an apartment hotel in uptown Manhattan. They enjoyed this 
vacation very much. Close relatives and dear friends came to the boat to see them off. Cousins Ella and Dave Shwab 
came especially, from Chicago. Anita's memory; My memory 
338 en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Ashkelon 

http://dsclick.infospace.com/ClickHandler.ashx?ru=http%3a%2f%2fh-net.msu.edu%2fcgi-bin%2flogbrowse.pl%3ftrx%3dvx%26list%3dH-Judaic%26month%3d1103%26week%3da%26msg%3dmC5kBUXVhtnUlgt55RZy5A&coi=239138&cop=main-title&c=playcity&ap=2&npp=2&p=0&pp=0&pvaid=602c9091a5034029b61c12b7a906bb51&ep=1&euip=192.114.66.228&app=1&hash=BC95AB7926D2FA0A258576FB023207CA�
http://dsclick.infospace.com/ClickHandler.ashx?ru=http%3a%2f%2fh-net.msu.edu%2fcgi-bin%2flogbrowse.pl%3ftrx%3dvx%26list%3dH-Judaic%26month%3d1103%26week%3da%26msg%3dmC5kBUXVhtnUlgt55RZy5A&coi=239138&cop=main-title&c=playcity&ap=2&npp=2&p=0&pp=0&pvaid=602c9091a5034029b61c12b7a906bb51&ep=1&euip=192.114.66.228&app=1&hash=BC95AB7926D2FA0A258576FB023207CA�
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belongings339. They found a nice Synagogue in the Afridor neighborhood of Ashkelon. My 
father could not find work in the Ashkelon area. My Mother used to enjoy watching everyone 
go to the games on Shabbat afternoon. Yet it bothered her that this took place on Shabbat. 
 
They moved Ramat HaNasi, a new neighborhood in Bat Yam340. When they first went to see 
the apartment my Father remarked that the area was so sandy, he had to rollup his trousers, 
as the sand got in to the cuffs of his trousers. The area developed quite nicely. My father 
found work in Dunn and Bradd Street341 firm branch in Tel Aviv. My Mother helped him with 
the typing of his reports. They found a nice cultural life in Tel Aviv. 
 
They enjoyed their Granddaughters very much. They were not too happy about us living on a 
Kibbutz for ideological reasons; but as far as our daily life was concerned were pleased. They 
enjoyed visiting us; however my Mother always was shy of the kibbutz members. She once 
said that she did not feel herself good enough to be in their company. They enjoyed when 
they had guests (family or friends from America). 
 
My Father started not to feel too well; and my Mother was against calling the doctor or going 
to the doctor. At first she said that it was almost Purim and it would be a shame to bother a 
doctor at this time of year. Ayelet was then in high school and had a few hours of volunteer 
work every week. She spent them visiting her grandparents.  A few months later my Mother 
understood that they must call the doctor. She asked that I come to be there when the doctor 
came. The doctor came and said he had to be taken to Wolfson Hospital342. My mother did 
not want to go with him in the ambulance. He went though various tests and had to stay in the 
hospital. The tests didn't show anything seriously wrong with him; but one doctor said to me 
"your Father is a very sick man". He went home and a short while later had to return again to 
the hospital. He returned home and felt he was feeling a bit better. I was there on a Thursday 
night and he asked me to bring him delicatessen343 the next time I would come. On the 
following Shabbat the telephone rang. Doria asked me why I was answering it on Shabbat. 
My mother said that my Father was in a bad way344 and they were going to the hospital and 
that we should come. She went with him in the ambulance. We got there and he was already 
gone. Yes, he had a hard end to his life. 
My Mother was very brave and was able to continue her live in their apartment. She came to 
us quite often for Shabbat. She attended lectures in Tel Aviv.  
 
About 3 years later she started to feel bad. She diagnosed herself, as having breast cancer. 
She agreed that I call the doctor. The doctor said her diagnosis was correct. The doctor 
wanted her to go for an operation. She did not want to. She claimed that doctors 
experimented on old people. She came to live with us. The situation deteriorated slowly. The 
Kibbutz nurse (Adina Baruchi), was very good to her/us came to give her an injection every 
evening. She liked having members of the family around and enjoyed if they would help her if 
she needed it. She did not like if other people came to visit. The only member of the kibbutz 
whose visits she enjoyed was Yehuda Neuman345. He understood this and tried to come 
about once a week. She had intellectual conversations with him. Once she asked him why the 
snake is the symbol for Israeli medicine346. 
 
The sickness reached such a stage that she fond it hard to take physical care pf herself. We 
were not always around to help her. Therefore she was entitled to help from Israeli social 
                                                
339 My Father had possessed about 6000 books, pamphlets, and journals; but they brought only about 3000 with 
them. My memory 
340 en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Bat_Yam 
341 www.dnb.com/ 
342 www.wolfson.org.il/ 
343 My Mother was against such food. She served only healthy food. My memory 
344 My mother said that the last words that he uttered were him calling for his Mother. 
345  He was a member of the Kibbutz from the very beginning, when it was located in the Etzion bloc. He has done 
much writing on this subject. He is also a very learned person. 
www.kibbutz.org.il/itonut/2007/haver/070419_noiman.htm 
346 Moses is said in the to have set up an image of a brazen serpent so that those who looked upon it would be 
healed. When the people of Israel wandered in the desert, they murmured against God and against Moses. As a 
punishment "fiery serpents" of the region were sent against them, and very many died of their poisonous bites. When 
they repented Moses was bidden to put upon a lofty pole an image in bronze of such a serpent. The sufferers then 

  en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Nehushtan )9-Numbers21:4s were healed of their sickness. (only had to look upon thi 

http://bibref.hebtools.com/?book=%20Numbers&verse=21:4-9&src=HE�
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security. She had a women come to help her a few hours a week. Mordechai and our 
daughters helped as much as possible. Koby also helped. She got along very well with this 
woman, who was a Persian Jew. The situation continued to deteriorate. She died in our 
house on the last day of Chanuka. Yes, she had a hard end to her life. 
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Conclusion 

After finishing this article, I knew that I had to write a "Conclusion". I then had a problem, for I 
did not know what to write. I felt that I had said everything in the "Introduction" and in the 
contents of the article. Then I realized what my problem was: How could I write a 
"Conclusion" about my Family. 
 
Therefore I understand what I want to say is that I hope that  

1. We will always continue to be a family; regardless of how physically close we are to 
each other. 

2. We will continue to grow, in number and in spirit. Jackie has become a Grandfather, 
in the time that I was writing this article  

3. We will always value and respect our past as a Jewish family and hope and pray to 
continue as such. 

 
I thank all of you, who have helped me, by sending me valuable information for this article, 
and hope that the connection between us, which this article has caused, will continue.  
I hope that you all enjoyed reading this article; for I know how much I enjoyed writing it. 
 
ESTHER 
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Appendices 

Appendix-1      Louis Golding’s Writings347 

Forward from Babylon, 1920 

Novels 

Seacoast of Bohemia, 1923 

Day of Atonement, 1925 

Luigi of Catanzaro, 1926 

Store of Ladies, 1927 

The Miracle Boy, 1927 

The Prince or Somebody, 1929 

Give Up Your Lovers, 1930 

Magnolia Street, 1931 

Five Silver Daughters, 1934 

The Camberwell Beauty, 1935 

The Pursuer, 1936 

The Dance Goes On, 1937 

Mr Emmanuel, 1939 

No News from Helen, 1943 

The Glory of Elsie Silver, 1946 

 

 

 

 

                                                

347 www.bookrags.com/tandf/golding-louis-tf/ - United States - 

 

 

Three Jolly Gentlemen, 1947 

The Dark Prince: A Short Novel, 1948 

Honey for the Ghost, 1949 

The Dangerous Places, 1951 

The Bare-Knuckle Breed, 1952 

The Loving Brothers, 1952 

To the Quayside, 1954 

Mr Hurricane, 1957 

The Little Old Admiral, 1958 

The Frightening Talent, 1973 

Short Stories 

The Doomington Wanderer: A Book of Tales, 1934;  
as This Wanderer, 1935 

Pale Blue Nightgown: A Book of Tales, 1944 

The Vicar of Dunkerly Briggs and Other Short Stories, 1944 

Mario on the Beach and Other Tales, 1956 
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Sorrow of War, 1919 

Poetry 

Oxford Poetry, with others, 1921 

Shepherd Singing Ragtime and Other Poems, 1921 

Prophet and Fool: A Collection of Poems, 1923 

Sunward, 1924 

Travel Narratives 

Sicilian Noon, 1925 

Those Ancient Lands: Being a Journey to Palestine, 1928 

In the Steps of Moses the Lawgiver, 1937 

In the Steps of Moses the Conqueror, 1938 

Louis Golding Goes Travelling, 1945 

Goodbye to Ithaca, 1955 

A Letter to Adolf Hitler, 1932 

Other 

James Joyce, 1933 

Terrace in Capri: An Imaginary Conversation with Norman Douglas, 1934 

The Song of Songs (Newly Interpreted and Rendered as a Masque), 1937 

The Jewish Problem, 1938 

Hitler through the Ages, 1939 

The World I Know, 1940 

Editor, with André Simon, We Shall Eat and Drink Again: A Wine and Food Anthology, 1944 

Epilogue in The Future of the Jews: A Symposium, 1945 

Memories of Old Park Row, 1887–1897, 1946 

Editor, Boxing Tales: A Collection of Thrilling Stories of the Ring, 1948 

My Sporting Days and Nights, 1948 
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Appendix- 2
 

    Jack Golding (Z’L) 

A. Certificates: 
 
1)"UK, Soldiers Died in the Great War 1914-1920"348  
  
Jack Golding  

Name: Jack Golding 
Birth Place: Manchester 
Death Date: 5 Apr 1918 

Death Location: France & Flanders 
Enlistment 

Location: 
Manchester 

Rank: Private 
Regiment: Manchester Regiment 
Battalion: 1/7th Battalion 
Number: 57252 
Type of 

Casualty: 
Killed in action 

Theatre of War: Western European Theatre 
  

 

  
2) British Army WWI Medal Rolls Index Cards 1914-1920349   
 

Description Medal card of Golding, Jack 
Corps Regiment No Rank 
Manchester 
Regiment 

57252 Private 
 

Date 1914-1920 

Catalogue 
reference 

WO 372/8  

Dept Records created or inherited by the War Office, Armed Forces, 
Judge Advocate General, and related bodies 

Series War Office: Service Medal and Award Rolls Index, First World 
War 

Piece Gibson A - Hannas J M M 

Image 
contains 

1 medal card of many for this collection 

 

                                                
348 from Ancestry.com (for which RE has a subscription). 
 
349 Ancestry com.(See ft.16); http://www.nationalarchives.gov.uk/documentsonline/details-
result.asp?queryType=1&resultcount=1&Edoc_Id=2518857 
  

http://www.nationalarchives.gov.uk/catalogue/ExternalRequest.asp?RequestReference=WO+372%2F8�
http://www.nationalarchives.gov.uk/catalogue/ExternalRequest.asp?RequestReference=WO+372%2F8�
http://www.nationalarchives.gov.uk/documentsonline/details-result.asp?queryType=1&resultcount=1&Edoc_Id=2518857�
http://www.nationalarchives.gov.uk/documentsonline/details-result.asp?queryType=1&resultcount=1&Edoc_Id=2518857�
http://www.nationalarchives.gov.uk/catalogue/ExternalRequest.asp?RequestReference=WO+372/8�
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3) Medical Card350 

 

4. Casualty Details351 

 

 
 

 

Casualty Details 
Name: GOLDING 

Initials: J 

                                                
350  http://www.nationalarchives.gov.uk/documentsonline/details-
result.asp?queryType=1&resultcount=1&Edoc_Id=2518857 
351 http://www.cwgc.org/search/casualty_details.aspx?casualty=305497 
 
 
 

http://www.nationalarchives.gov.uk/documentsonline/details-result.asp?queryType=1&resultcount=1&Edoc_Id=2518857�
http://www.nationalarchives.gov.uk/documentsonline/details-result.asp?queryType=1&resultcount=1&Edoc_Id=2518857�
http://www.cwgc.org/search/casualty_details.aspx?casualty=305497�
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Nationality: United Kingdom 
Rank: Private 

Regiment/Service: Manchester Regiment 
Unit Text: 1st/7th Bn. 

Date of Death: 05/04/1918 
Service No: 57252 

Casualty Type: Commonwealth War Dead 
Grave/Memorial 

Reference: II. F. 8. 

Cemetery: GOMMECOURT WOOD NEW CEMETERY, 
FONCQUEVILLERS 

 
 

B. In Flanders Fields353

In Flanders fields the poppies blow 
Between the crosses, row on row, 
That mark our place; and in the sky 
The larks, still bravely singing, fly 
Scarce heard amid the guns below. 

   by John McCrae, May 1915 

We are the Dead. Short days ago 
We lived, felt dawn, saw sunset glow, 
Loved and were loved, and now we lie 
In Flanders fields. 

Take up our quarrel with the foe: 
To you from failing hands we throw 
The torch; be yours to hold it high. 
If ye break faith with us who die 
We shall not sleep, though poppies grow 
In Flanders fields 

 

 
 
 
 

                                                
353 www.greatwar.co.uk/poems/john-mccrae-in-flanders-fields 

http://www.cwgc.org/search/cemetery_details.aspx?cemetery=31400&mode=1�
http://www.cwgc.org/search/cemetery_details.aspx?cemetery=31400&mode=1�
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Appendix- 3 

GOLDING FAMILY TREE     JuddE Posner 
 
 A                       ---------------- =  ------------- 1. Married couple  
  2. Second Marriage     
 ---------------- =/ ---------------  Divorced Couple                      
________________________| 
| 
|__________-----------------  = ------------- Progeny of couple                     B 
|                (birth date-date died) 
|                                             m (date married) 
|_____ 
| 
|_____ 
|  
 
A= Page number of parents of couple 
B= Page number for children of progeny 
 
 
 
 

generation 1             1-----------Siblings------------1    
  
 

generation 2         2-------First Cousins---------2    
 

       First cousins once removed        
 

generation 3          3------Second Cousins------3    
 

Second cousins once removed    
 
First cousins twice removed 

 
 generation 4  4------Third Cousins--------4     
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                                                                                                                page   2 
 

Yehuda Reyentowitz = Necha Tsirilstein 
________________________| 
| 
|_____Monash Reyentowitz = Rachel  2 
|          (ca1825-1914) 
| 
|_____Ida Bessie Tsirilstein = Louis Shimm                          3 
|          (1855-1937)    (ca1856-1932) 
|                               m-1872 
| 
|_____Shmuel Reyentowitz =    ?                                3 
| 
|_____Shifra Reyentowitz = 
|            (ca1845) 
| 
|_____Aryea Reyentowitz =                                        2 
 
 
 
2          Monash Reyentowitz = Rachel 
    | 
________________________| 
| 
|_____Necha Reyentowitz = Philip Golding                  4 
 
 
 
 
 2         Aryeah Reyentowitz = 
______________________ | 
| 
|_____Necha Reyentowitz = Hershel Hutt                      4 
| 
|_____Sarah Rivkah Reyentowitz = Benjamin Ginsberg 5 
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                                                                                                    Page 3 
2      Shmuel Reyentowitz =  ? 
______________________| 
| 
|_____ Mamie Reyentowitz = Morris Rosenbloom   (Rockford, Ill) 5  
|                                                
|_____Tybe Reyentowitz =    Ben  Rubin                                           5 
|            (1876-  )          m-1897   (1876 -  ) (Chicago, Ill.) 
|____Judith Reyentowitz = Harry Krensky (Waterloo, Iowa)             5 
| 
|_____Sarah Reyentowitz =              Mazer  (Boston, Mass)              6 
                (1892-1975)         

 
2                        Ida Tsirilstein= Louis Shimm (Shimkovsky) 
    | 
________________________| 
| 
|____Israel Feinberg = 1. Fannie Kass (Kasanoff)  6 
|           (1872-1944)       (1875-1963) 
|                                   = 2. ? Verowitz 
|                                   = 3. ? Maibach 
| 
|_____Sarah Shimm = Louis Craig (Cohen)   7 
|          (1875-1963)      (1874-1926) 
|_____       m-1898 
| 
|_____Annie Shimm=Julius Golding    7 
|         (1880-1952)       (1878-1932) 
|      m-1902 
| 
|_____Abe Shimm = Millie Glatman    8 
|           (1882-1951)   (1884-1973) 
| 
|_____Nettie Shimm = Nathan Greenberg 
|           (1884-1977)     (1885-1963) 
|      m-1911 
| 
|_____Dora Shimm = Harry Handin 
|           (1889-1926) 
|                              m-1918 
| 
|______Joe Shimm =/ Sadie Rosenblatt   8 
             (1894-1950)   (1899-1970) 
                             m-1924 
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page 4 

 
 
2                  Necha Reyentowitz   =  Philip Golding   = Etta  
___________________________|    
|        
|_____Julius Golding = Annie Shimm                  7  
|         (1880-1932)       (1878-1952) 
|                                m-1902                              
|                                                                 
|_____Edith Golding = Zach Marcus                        8 
|          (1882-1956)        (1878-1957)                  
|                             m-1905                                              
|_____Sarah Golding = Rubin Goldstone                   9 
          (1886) 
                                                                            
_____  Aby Golding =  Jinnie Gustav_____________ 9 
|            (1893-1962)      (1895-1989) 
| 
|_____Louis Golding = Annie Wintrobe 
|           (1895-1958) 
|                               m 1956 
| 
|_____Jack Golding 
             (1899-1918) 
 
2              Necha Reyentowitz = Hershel Hutt 
________________________| 
|_____Max Hutt = Rose                                                         9  
|_____Bessie Hutt = Solomon Barmash                                 10 
|   (1880-   ) 
|_____Pauline Hutt = 1. Adolph Chernack 
|                                   2. Sam Sasslow 
|_____Sarah Hutt = 
| 
|_____Ben Hutt = Rose Ginsberg                                           9    
|          (1896-1974)      (1905-1996)  
|_____Morris Hutt = Sadie                                                    10 
| 
|_____Abe Hutt 
| 
|_____Nat Hutt    = Ada Gustav ( Jinnie’s sister)                  10 
           (1901- 1984)  (1905-  ) 
  m-1929 
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2    Sarah Rifka Reyentowitz = Benjamin Ginsberg                                             
________________________| 
| 
|_____Fannie Ginsberg = Jack Kaplan                                   10 
| 
|_____Dora Ginsberg = Frank Kaplan                                    10 
| 
|_____Rose Ginsberg = Ben Hutt                                             9 
| 
|_____Thomas Ginsberg (Berng) = Mary 

 
 
3           Mamie Reyentowitz = Morris Rosenbloom 
________________________| 
| 
|_____Sam Rosenbloom =Lena Klagler (Iowa) 
| 1903-1975)            (1902-  ) 
|   m-1926 
|_____Mildred Rosenbloom = 
| 
|_____Abraham 
 (1911- 1993) 
 
3 Tybe Reyentowitz   =Ben  Rubin 
________________________| 
| 
|_____Julius Rubin = 
| (1907-  ) 
|_____Sam Rubin = 
 
 
3 Judith Reyentowitz = Harry Krensky 
________________________| 
| 
|_____Ann Krensky 
| 
|_____Sidney Krensky 
| 
|_____Jennie Krensky 
| 
|_____Mildred Krensky 
| 
|_____m   
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3    Sarah Reyentowitz = ? Mazer 
________________________| 
| 
|_____Tina Mazer = Harry Lipkind                                      15 
| (1901-  ) 
|  m-1929 
|_____Sophie Mazer 
| (1905 _  ) 
|_____Alice Mazer 
| (1906-  ) 
|_____Sidney Mazer 
| (1907-  ) 
 
 3                     Israel Feinberg = Fannie Kass 
_________________________| 
| 
|_____Herman Feinberg  = Mollie Lustig                             11 
|            (1896-1979)             (1901-     ) 
|_____George Feinberg  = 1.Annie Bosley                           11 
|             (1898-1979)               (1897-1971)                                           
|                                          2. Frances Finn (Finklestein)      11 
|    (1914-1991)  
|_____Rose Feinberg  = Barney Richards                             11           
|         (1902-dec)      (1902-1974) 
|_____Shirley Feinberg = Abe Inker                                     11 
|            (1904-1991)           (1903-2000) 
|_____Emma Feinberg  = Willy Wallace (willowsky)                             
             (1905-1984)         (1904-1984) 
|_____Louis Feinberg = Muriel Barton                                 12 
|           (1908-1985)          (1917-1995) 
|_____Harold Feinberg = Judy Lichterstein                          12 
            (1915-1995)        (1916-2000) 
|_____Loretta Feinberg = 1. Bill Walters                              11 
| (1918-  )                2.? Beckenstein 
|_____Willy Feinberg = Caroline Silverman                         12 
|           (1918-1995)        (1916-2003) 
|_____Elinore Feinberg = Thomas Lane                               12 
|          (1919-1983  ) 
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3 Sarah Shimm = Louis Craig (Cohen) 
   | 
__________________| 
| 
|_____Julius Craig = Florence Beck                                     12 
|          (1899-1942)    (1901-1999) 
|                              m-1925 
|_____George Craig =/ Elizabeth 
|           (1902-1970) 
|_____Florence Craig = Charles VanEdsinga 
|           (1906-?)              (1909-1977) 
|                           m-1942 
|_____Sanford Craig = Sarah Stone                                       13 
            (1909-1972)     (1913-1967) 
                              m-1937 
 
 
3,4 Annie Shimm = Julius Golding 
________________________|                       
| 
|_____Annette Golding = Murray Posner   13 
|           (1903-1983)          (1902-1970) 
|                              m-1929 
| 
|_____Sidney Golding = Mildred Lewis   13 
|             (1905-1956)       (1908-1996) 
|                                m-1929 
| 
|_____George Golding = Celia Fleder   14 
|             (1913-1950)        (1916-    ) 
|                                m-1938 
| 
|______May Golding = Norman Rice    14 
              (1916-2006)     (1913-1989) 
                                 m-1939 
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3    Abe Shimm  = Millie Glatman 
_______________________|                       
| 
|_____George Shimm = Dorothy Schoen   14 
|            (1907-1969)           (1908 -2000) 
|_____Edna Shimm = Mack Gray    14 
|             (dec  )             (dec ) 
|_____Morton Shimm = Ruth Gottlieb   15 
 (1917-1991)          (     -dec.) 
 
 
3                        Joe Shimm  = Sadie Rosenblatt 
________________________|                       
| 
|____Melvin Shimm = Cynia Brown                                      15 
|           (1926-2005 )        (1926-    ) 
|                                m 1948                
|_____Robert Shimm = Pat Henderson                                    15 
             (1926-     )         (1934-    ) 
                                m 1958 
 
 
4  Edith Golding = Zach Marcus 
________________________|                       
| 
|_____Nettie Marcus = Oscar Herschman                                 16 
|           (1907-1991)        (1903-1987) 
|                               m1938 
|_____Lionel Marcus = Jeannette Salkin                                   16 
|            (1909- 1999)     (1912-1994) 
|                                m1944 
| 
|_____Norman Marcus = Rose Hochberg                                  16 
|             (1911-1986)        (1912- 2003 ) 
| 
|_____Frances Marcus = Joe Gross 
            (1917- 1973)     (   -1998) 
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4  Sarah Golding = Rubin Goldstone 
________________________|                        
| 
|_____Nettie Goldstone =  ? 
|           (1905-   ) 
|_____Sonny Goldstone = ?                            (Ireland) 
|           (1907- dec )  
|_____Sidney Goldstone = Phyllis 
|            ((1908- 1980) 
|_____Norman Goldstone (MD) = Edith  ?     (Scotland) 16 
|           (1917-dec.  )                              (     -1982) 
| 
 
  
4  Aby Golding = Jinnie Gustav 
________________________|  
| 
|____Rita Golding = Martin Pomerantz             17 
|             (    -1994) 
|____Phillip Golding = Joyce Charlip              17 
 
 

 
 

4  Max Hutt  = Rose  
_____________________|  
| 
|____Martha Hutt  =   ?   Rosenberg    17 
 
 
 
4,5         Ben Hutt = Rose Ginsberg 
________________________|  
| 
|_____Bobby Hutt 
           (1935-1996) 
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4     Morris Hutt = Sadie     
________________________|                       
| 
|_____Sidney Hutt = ? 
| 
|_____Betty Hutt = ? 
| 
|_____m 
 
 
4            Nat Hutt = Ada ? 
________________________|                        
| 
|_____Helene Hutt =/ Al Arnell                                         26 
 
 
 
4      Bessie Hutt = ? Barmash 
________________________|                        
| 
|_____Rae Barmash =  ? Reisman 
| 
|_____Joseph Barmash  
 
 
5             Fannie Ginsberg = Jack Kaplan 
________________________|                        
| 
|_____Leona Kaplan = Harry Feldman                              17 
| 
|_____Norman Kaplan 
                 (dec) 
 
 
5                      Dora Ginsberg = Frank Kaplan 
________________________|                        
| 
|_____Herbert Kaplan = 1. Maxine Blum                            18   
                                        2. ? 
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6 Herman Feinberg aka Fenwick = Mollie Lustig 
_______________________________| 
| 
|_____Marsha Feinberg =  ? Cohen                                       24 
|            (1913-dec) 
|_____Carol Feinberg = Victor Smith                                    24    
            (1915-    )    m 1960       
 
 
6                  George Feinberg =         1. Annie Bosley  
________________________| 
|         
|_____Arthur Feinberg = Eleanore Getzler                               28  
|              (1922 -2004 )            (1924-2005 ) 
|                    
|_____Bernice Feinberg =1.Marvin Lerner                                                       
               (1920-1992) 
                                          2.Frank Lewis   28 
                                            (1914-1998) 
                                                =        2. Frances Finn(klestein)                      
______________________________| 
|                                                   
|____Darleen (Dolly) Feinberg = Michael Warren                 27 
|          (1941    ) 
|_____Beverly Feinberg =1. Ian Moss 
|           (1942    )       2.Hans Besmer 
|_____Larry Feinberg = Amy Jacobson                                  32 
            (1943-dec.) 
 
6  Rose Feinberg = Barney Richards 
________________________|                       
| 
|_____Roland Richards = Pat                                                 24    
           (1929    ) 
 
 
6  Shirley Feinberg = Abe Inker 
________________________|                        
| 
|_____Leonard Inker= Judy                                         24 

                      m1960 
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6         Loretta Feinberg = Bill Walters 
________________________|                        
| 
|_____Beth Walters  =  1. Glen  Wright                 23 
                                  =  2. John Staryk                      23 
 
 
 
6                Eleanore Feinberg = Thomas Lane 
|________________________|                        
| 
|_____Iva Lane=1. Robert Castle 
                            2. Robert ? 

 
 

6                    Louis Feinberg = Muriel Barton 
________________________|                        
| 
|_____Alan (aka Alan Allan) Feinberg = 1.Marilyn                        24 
 (     -2003)                    2. Faye                            31 
 
 
6                 Willy Feinberg = Caroline Silverman 
________________________|                        
| 
|_____Leonard 
|           (dec) 
|_____David Feinberg = Doris Ellis                                               25 
 
 
6                   Harold Feinberg = Judy 
________________________|                        
| 
|_____Steven 
| 
|_____Eileen 
 
7                  Julius Craig = Florence Beck 
________________________|                        
| 
|_____Patricia Craig = Eugene Brams                                          18 

(1929- ) 
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7                     Sanford Craig = Sarah 
________________________|                        
| 
|_____Arthur Craig = Sharon Wachtel                                19 
|           (1947-     )        (1949-    ) 

 
 

7                Annette Golding = Murray Posner 
________________________|                        
| 
|_____Charlotte Lucille Posner = George David Hirschfield                       18 
|           (1930-     )             (1927-     ) 
|                           m-1950 
| 
|_____Judd Edward Posner 
          (1938-   ) 
 
 
7                   Sidney Golding = Mildred Lewis 
________________________|                        
| 
|_____Martin Golding = Naomi Holtzman                          19 
|          (1930-    )             (1930-      ) 
| 
|_____Judith Golding = 1. Arnold Freedman                       19 
           (1935-     )              (1933- 1989)                       
                               m1953  
                                     = 2. Mel Eisenberg 
                               m 2000 
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7                  George Golding = Celia Fleder 
________________________|                        
| 
|_____Judith Golding = Ronald Zedd                                    20 
|          (1941-1973)         
|                              m1962 
| 
|______Linda Golding = David Cohen                                  20 
|              (1944-   )             (1941-    ) 
|         m1963 
|______Sandra Golding = Howard Peskin                             20 

(1947- )            (1944-   ) 
                    m1969 

 
 

 
7                       May Golding = Norman Rice 
________________________|                        
| 
|_____Judith Rice = Robert Conklin                                     20 
|          (1942-     )       (1940-       ) 
|                         m1962 
|_____Betty Rice = Stephen Schoenberg                               21 
           (1947-     )    (1942-      ) 
                          m1966  
 
 
8           George Shimm = Dorothy Schoen    
________________________|                        
| 
|_____Kenneth Shimm =/1. Roberta Wasserman                    23 
|                                          (dec.) 
|                                      =/2. Arlene Ballerini 
|_____Steven Shimm = Susan Scarpulla                                 23 
           (1938-     )           (1943-    ) 
 
 
8                        Edna Shimm = Mack Gray 
________________________|                        
| 
|_____Larry Gray = Helen Lucas                                             22 
           (dec.)     m1967 
|_____Barbara Gray =/ 1. Richard Mandel                              22 
                                      2. Skip  
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8                    Morton Shimm = Ruth Gottlieb 
________________________|                        
| 
|_____Emily Shimm = David Sendler                                      23 
| 
|_____Doreen  Shimm = Jack Levy                                          23 
| 
|_____Mark Shimm 
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          (1948-2005) 
 

 
 

8             Bobby Shimm = Pat Henderson    
________________________|                        
| 
|_____Joey Shimm = Yoko         30 
|          (1961-    ) 
|_____Amy Shimm = Aaron Noveshen     31 
|          (1966-    ) 
| 
|_____Peter Shimm = Monique Endrody     32 

(1964 ) 
 

 
8                    Melvin Shimm = Cynia Brown 
________________________|                        
| 
|_____David Shimm =/1. Linda Winbarn 
|              (1952-   )         
|                              m1978 
|            = 2.Carmen Canchola 
|         m1997 
|_____Jon Shimm = Judith Willingham                                 26 
              (1956-    )   (1958-    ) 
                               m1985 
 
 
6                          Tina Mazer = Harry Lipkind 
________________________|                        
| 
|_____f| 
|_____m 
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8                      Nettie Marcus = Oscar Herschman 
________________________|                        
| 
|_____Esther Anne Herschman = Mordechai Rechtschafner    21 
|                       (1944-     )                   (1941-     ) 
|    m1965 

 
8                    Lionel Marcus = Jeannette Salkin 
________________________|                        
| 
|_____Marsha Marcus = Lon Partridge                                    21 
|           (1946-    )           (1945-     ) 
|                                m1968 
| 
|______Mark Marcus = Diane Lagenegro                               25 
             (1951-     )         (1950-      ) 
                                m1979 
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8                  Norman Marcus = Rose Hochberg  
________________________|                        
| 
|_____Jack Marcus =/ Sylvia Smolenski                                 22 
|          (1942-    ) 
| 
|_____Daniel Marcus = Basya Barenboim                               22 
          (1946-    )  
 
 
9              Norman Goldstone = Edith 
________________________|                        
| 
|_____Anthony Goldstone = 
| 
|_____Iris Rochelle Goldstone = David Gould        29 
|          (1941-2001) 
|_____Phillip Goldstone 
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9                        Rita Golding = Marty Pomerantz 
________________________|                        
| 
|_____Diane Pomerantz =/ 1 Gary Weiss                              25 
|           (1948-    )            =  2 Myron Brenner 
| 
|_____Leslie Pomerantz = Diane                                            22 
|           (1946- 1988) 
 
 
9                       Philip Golding = Joyce Charlip 
________________________|                        
| 
|_____Laurence Golding =/ Tina 
| 
|_____Elisabeth Golding 
 
 
 9                         Martha Hutt =    ?   Rosenberg 
________________________|                        
| 
|_____? 
 

 
10                         Leona Kaplan = Harry Feldman 
________________________|                        
| 
|_____f 
| 
|_____m 
| 
|_____m 
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10                  Herbert Kaplan =/ Maxine Blum 
________________________|                        
| 
|_____Caroline Kaplan 
| 
|_____Michael Kaplan 
 
 
12                    Patricia Craig = Eugene Brams 
________________________|                        
| 
|_____Jolie Brams 
|          (1954-    ) 
| 
|_____Craig Brams = Sloan Sonnenfeld 
| 
|_____Matthew Brams = Alice Nao                                           28 
|     
|_____Andrew Brams 
           (1969-   ) 
 
 
13                      Charlotte Posner = David Hirschfield 
________________________|                        
| 
|_____Ann Beth Hirschfield = Mitchell Bruce Levine                      25 
|           (1954-      )                     (1952-   ) 
|                                              m1977 
| 
|_____Susan Rita Hirschfield = Ernest John Alvino 
            (1958-      )                      (1953-    )                     
                                                m1983 
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13                      Martin Golding = Naomi Holtzman 
|________________________|                        
| 
|_____Shulamith Golding = Jonathan Klein 
|          (1956-    ) 
| 
|_____Belinda Golding = Victor Schwartz               25 
|           (1958-    )                 (1955-       ) 
|                                   m1979 
| 
|_____Joshua Golding = Ayala Pollak                  29 
           (1961-     )                   
   m1991  
 
 
13                   Judith Golding = Arnold Freedman 
________________________|                        
| 
|_____Susan Freedman = Greg Ambers   29 
|           (1957-     ) 
| 
|_____Steven Freedman 
|           (1961-     ) 
|     
|_____Edward Freedman = Lisa Lightner       27 
|            (1967-    ) 
|                                        m1994 
|                                        
|_____Mark Freedman = Jennifer Pofsky     30 
             (1971-    ) 
                                     m1998 
 
 
  13                       Arthur Craig = Sharon Wachtel 
________________________|                        
| 
|_____Jason Spenser 

(1978- ) 
  
 

 
 

 
                                                                                                         20 

 
14                  Judith Golding = Ronald Zedd 
________________________|                        
|_____Gordon Zedd  
|          (1965-      ) 
|_____Barton Zedd = Dana Crowe                                     28 
          (1967-    ) 
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 14               Linda Golding = David Cohen 
________________________|                        
| 
|_____Jeffrey Cohen = Jody  Rubin                                    27 
|          (1966-     )            (1965-    ) 
|_____Randall Cohen = Robyn Lapp                       30 
|          (1971-     )             (1974-     ) 
|                              m1998 
|_____Michael Cohen 
           (1973-    ) 
 
14                   Sandra Golding = Howard Peskin 
________________________|                        
|_____Janna Peskin = Kenneth Brown                                26 
|           (1972-    )         (1966-    ) 
|                           m1996 
|_____Mara Peskin = Jeffrey Lapp                                      32 

(1976- ) 
m2002 

 
14                           Judith Rice = Robert Conklin 
________________________|                        
| 
|_____Susan Conklin= Barthold (Bob) Delphin                              32 
|          (1963-     ) 
                                 m-2004 
| 
|_____Sharon Conklin = Rexhep Bobi                                 26 
           (1965-   ) 
                                  m1991 
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14                       Betty Rice = Stephen Schoenberg 
_______________________|                        
| 
|_____Robert Schoenberg = Michele Greenblatt                             32 
|           (1971-   )                    (1971-   ) 
|                                         m1994 
|_____Lisa Schoenberg 
           (1974-     ) 
 
 
 
16         Esther Anne Herschman = Mordechai Rechtschafner 
________________________|                        
| 
|_____Idit Rechtschafner = Jacob Ingram                                                              29 
|          (1969-     )   
|       m1990 
|_____Ayelet Rechtschafner = Zachary Prigozin                                                   27 
|         (1971-     )            (1961-    ) 
|          m1998 
|_____Doria Rechtschafner = Moty Ivgy 
            (1980-    ) 
                                           m-2006 
 
16                  Marsha Marcus = Lon Partridge 
________________________|                        
| 
|_____Allison Partridge 
|          (1972-       ) 
| 
|_____Jonathan Partridge 
           (1978-     )         
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16                           Jack Marcus =/ Sylvia 
________________________|                        
| 
|_____Jessica Marcus 
|          (1980-    ) 
| 
|_____Adam Marcus   
          (1982-       ) 
 
16                   Daniel Marcus = Basya Barenboim 
________________________| 
| 
|________Michele Edith Marcus 
|                (1985-    ) 
|________Sharon Nettie Marcus 
|                 (1986-    ) 
|________David Norman Marcus 
                   (1988-    ) 
 
17                  Leslie Pomerantz = Diane 
________________________|                        
| 
|_____Lisa Pomerantz 
           (1974-     ) 
 
 
14                        Larry Gray = Helen Lucas 
________________________|                        
| 
|_____Marc Joseph Gray 
          (1973-   ) 
 
 
14                       Barbra Gray =/ Richard Mandel 
________________________|                        
| 
|_____Amy Mandel 
|         (1969-    ) 
| 
|_____Scot Mandel 
          (1972-     ) 
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15                      Doreen Shimm = Jack Levy 
________________________|                        
| 
|_____Adam Levy 
| 
|_____David Michael Levy 
 
 
11                     Beth Walters = 1. Glen Wright 
________________________|                        
| 
|_____Keaton Wright 
|                                                 =2.John Staryk 
_________________________| 
| 
|_____Corbet Storyk 
| 
|_____Kory Storyk 
 
15                              Emily Shimm = David Sendler 
_____________________________|                        
| 
|_____Karen Sendler 
| 
|_____Matthew Sendler 
 
 
14                           Kenneth Shimm=/1. Roberta Wasserman 
_____________________________|                        
| 
|_____Stephanie Shimm = Adam Kanter                                    30 
| 
|_____Stacey Shimm = Kevin Rosen 
     2. ? 
      
14                              Steven Shimm = Roberta Scarpulla 
|_____________________________|                        
| 
|_____Judith Shimm 
           (1973-     ) 
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12                              Alan Allan (Feinberg) = 1. Marilyn 
____________________________________|                        
| 
|_____Bonnie Allan ( Feinberg)= Neil Gottlieb 
| 
|_____Ronnie Allan (Feinberg) 
        = 2. faye 
_____________________________________| 
| 
|_Mark Allan (feinberg) 
| 
|_Glen Allan (Feinberg) = Sheila Vellone 
 
 
11                          Marsha Feinberg = ? Cohen 
_____________________________|                        
| 
|_____m 
| 
|_____m 
 
 
11                            Carol Feinberg = Victor Smith 
_____________________________|                        
| 
|_____Mark Smith 
| 
|_____Jeffrey Smith 
 
 
11                              Leonard Inker = Judy ? 
_____________________________|                        
| 
|_____Benjamin Inker 
| 
|_____Jennifer Inker 
 
 
11                          Roland Richards = Pat ? 
_____________________________|                        
| 
|_____Michael Richards 
| 
|_____Julie Richards12                  
 

page 25 
                      David Feinberg = Mary 
________________________| 
| 
|_____Leonard Feinberg 
| 
|_____Pamela Feinberg= Carlos Crespo   31 
| 
|_____Jeffrey Feinberg 
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18                    Ann Hirschfield = Mitchel Levine 
________________________| 
| 
|_____Amy Frances Levine 

(1984 ) 
 

16                     Mark Marcus = Diane Lagonegro 
________________________|                        
| 
|_____Stephanie Jennel Lagonegro 
            (1986-     ) 
 
19                    Belinda Golding = Victor Schwartz 
________________________| 
| 
|_____Max Schwartz 
|          (1987-     )     
|_____Jake Schwartz 
           (1990-    ) 
 
17               Diane Pomerantz = Myron Brenner 
________________________| 
| 
|_____Jane Aviv Brenner 
|           (1988-     ) 
|_____b 
          (1991-     ) 
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10                       Helene Hutt = Al Arnell 
_______________________| 
| 
|____Susan Arnell = Cary Caramanica                                  26 
| 
|_____Peter Arnell = Sarah  ? 
 
 
20                         Janna Peskin = Ken Brown 
________________________| 
| 
|_____Matthew Solomon Brown 
|          (1998-    ) 
|_____Emilie Hannah brown 
|          (2000-     ) 
|______Logan Heath Brown 
|             (2002)   
|______Seth Noah Brown 
             (2005) 
 
26                         Susan Arnell = Cary Caramanica 
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________________________| 
| 
|_____? 
 
20                      Sharon Conklin = Rexhop Bobi 
________________________| 
| 
|_____Sofia Bobi 

(1993- ) 
 
 
|15                        Jon Shimm = Judith Willingham 
________________________| 
|_____Avram Shimm 
|          (1987-      ) 
|_____Alexander Shimm 
           (1991-      ) 
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20                      Jeffrey Cohen = Jody Rubin 
_________________________| 
|_____Shira Cohen 
|       (1994-    ) 
|_____Ethan Cohen 
          (1996-      ) 
 
 
21          Ayelet Rechtschafner = Zachary Prigozin  
_________________________| 
|_____Daniel Asher Prigozin 
| (1999-    ) 
|_____Yonaton Prigozin 

(2001- ) 
 

19               Edward Freedman = Lisa Lightner 
_________________________| 
| 
|_____Jake Arnold Freedman  

(1999- ) 
|____Jordan Ashleigh Freedman 
        (2002-   ) 
 
 
11                 Darlene Feinberg = Michael Warren 
_________________________| 
| 
|____Deborah Warren =  Bruce  Steckler      27 
|           (1966-     ) 
|_____Robert Warren 
|          (1968-      ) 
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|_____Leslie Warren 
          (1974-     ) 
 
27                     Deborah Warren =  Bruce Steckler     
_________________________| 
| 
|__Sophia Frances Steckler 
| 
|__Daniel Steckler 
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11                  Arthur  Feinberg = Eleanore Getzler 
_________________________| 
| 
|_____ Ira Feinberg= 1.Carole Schwartz   30 
| (1947-   )   (1948-  ) 
|                                   2.Andrea Gorochow 
|      (1947-    ) 
|_____ Linda Feinberg 
|          (1948-     )  
|_____Roberta Feinberg 
| (1951-   )    
|_____ Glenn Feinberg = Joy Baltic    31 
| (1953-    )            (1953-     ) 
 
 
11                 Bernice Feinberg =  Frank Lewis 
_________________________| 
| 
|____Michael Lewis = Harriet Levine   31 
| (1950-    ) 
|_____Eileen Lewis = David Helman 
| (1949-2001) 
|_____Raschel Lewis 
 (1954-    ) 
 
18                      Matthew Brams = Alice Nao 
_________________________| 
| 
|_____Evan Brams 

(1998- ) 
 

20                        Barton Zedd = Dana Crowe 
_________________________| 
| 
|_____Jacob Zedd 
|          (1999-    )| 
|_____Michael Zedd 
|          (2001-    ) 
|_____Eliot Zedd            
|   
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16 Iris Rochelle Goldstone = David Gould 
__________________________| 
| 
|____Clive David Gould 
| (1969-    ) 
|_____Vivian Sara Gould= Dan Green 

(1972- ) 
 

 
21               Idit Rechtschaftner = Jacob Ingram 
________________________| 
| 
|_____Avital Ingram 
| (1994-   ) 
|_____Yael Shoshanna Ingram 
| (1995-   ) 
|_____Yonaton Aryeh Ingram 
| (1997-    ) 
|_____Renat Leah Ingram 
| (1999-    ) 
|_____Zuria Shir Ingram 

(2002- ) 
|_____Tehila Rivka Ingram 
            (2003-    ) 
 
 
19                           Josh Golding = Ayala Pollak 
_________________________| 
| 
|_____Rafael Judah Golding 
| (1992-   )  
|____ Rebecca Rachel Golding 
| (1994-   ) 
|_____Samuel Benjamin Golding 
| (1997-   )  
|_____Nathaniel William Golding 
| (2000-   ) 
|_____Vanessa Michelle Golding 

(2003- ) 
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page 30 
 
20 
   Randall Cohen = Robyn Lapp 
   |                        
  |______Micha Shai 
  |           (2002-     ) 
  |_______Judah Adin 
              (2005-    ) 
 
19 

               Mark Freedman = Jennifer Pofsky 
               ____________| 
               |__Emily Anne Freedman 
               |    (2002) 
               | ___Jonathan Evan 
                      (2005) 

 
             23 
               Stephanie Shimm = Adam Kanter                             

   _________________ | 
   |_Rebecca Kanter 
 

              15 
    Joey Shimm = Yoko 
    ___________ | 
    |___Andrew Shimm  
    |__ Kenneth Shimm 
 
28 
    Ira Feinberg= Carole Schwartz 

                __________| 
                |___Adam Feinberg = Ndidi Bonique Foy    31 
     |      (1973-     )                  (1973-    ) 

    |____Daniel Feinberg 
 (1976-    ) 
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page 31 
28 
 Michael Lewis = Harriet Levine 
  __________________| 
  | 
  |____Annie Lewis 
  | (1981-     ) 
  |____Debbie Lewis  

(1986- ) 
 

28 
 Glen Feinberg = Joy Baltic 
   _________________| 
   | 
   |____Seth Feinberg 

               | (1983-   ) 
    |____Zachary Feinberg 
     
 
 30 
  Adam Feinberg = Ndidi Bonique  
                _________________| 
     | 
                |_____Shayna Feinberg 
                |          (2003-    ) 
                |_____Aaron Matthew 
                           (2005-    ) 
 
 
            25 
  Pamela Feinberg = Carlos Crespo 
               ___________________| 
               | 
    |__Mikhael Crespo 
    | 
               |__Sarah Crespo 
 
 
 15 
           Amy Shimm = Aaron Novashen 
                ______________| 
               |____Remy 
          (2002-     ) 
 
 
  
 

page 32 
 
        15 
  Peter Shimm = Monique Endrody    
                _______________| 
               | 
               |___Avram 
               | 
               |___Alexander 
 
 
      11  Larry Feinberg = Amy Jacobson 
                _________________| 
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                | 
                |_____Nicholas Feinberg 
                | 
                |______Chloe Feinberg 
                | 
                |______Geoffrey Feinberg  
 
 
21              Robert Schoenberg = Michele Greenblat 
                  _______________| 
                 |_____Emily Nicole Schoenberg 
                 |              (2001-    ) 
                 |_____Matthew Spencer Schoenberg 
                         (2005-   ) 
 
20 
                     Susan Conklin= Bob Delphin 
                  ______________| 
                 |____Grace Elizabeth Delphin 
                        (2005) 
 
20               Mara Peskin= Jeffrey Lapp 
                   ___________| 
                   |___Elliot Simon Lapp 
                         (2006) 
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GOLDING LIST  JuddE Posner 
Appendix- 4 

 
INDEX 

 
 
 

1) Given names of family members. 
 
 

2) Surnames: Women are listed by their Maiden names.  The 
Only exception to this is when a maiden name was not known in 
which case it is listed under the married name. 

 
 

3) The third column is the spouse’s first name, provided to distinguish 
between two individuals with the same given name. 

 
 
4) The fourth column is the married name of female family members. 

 
 

5) The fifth column lists the family (maiden) name of the female 
spouse. 

 
 

6) The sixth column lists the given name of the male spouse. 
 
 

7) The page number column will lead you to the location of the 
individual in the genealogy.  

 
 

8) A question mark is used if a given name is unknown.  An m or f is 
used to indicate the gender but unknown name. 
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First Name Last Name Wife's 

Name 
Married Name  Family Name Husband’s 

Name 
Page 
 No. 

1. Skip ? Barbara  Gray  14 
2. Bonnie Allan     24 
3. Glen Allan     24 
4. Marilyn Allan  Feinberg  Alan 12 
5. Mark Allan     24 
6. Ronnie Allan     24 
7. Ernest  Alvino Susan  Hirschfield  18 
8. Greg Ambers Susan  Freedman  19 
9. Al Arnell Helene  Hutt  10 
10. Peter Arnell     26 
11. Sarah Arnell  Arnell  Peter 26 
12. Susan  Arnell     26 
13. Arlene  Ballerini  Shimm  Kenneth 14 
14. Joy Baltic  Feinberg  Glenn 28 
15. Basya Barenboim  Marcus  Daniel 16 
16. ? Barmash Bessie  Hutt  4 
17. Joseph Barmash     10 
18. Rae Barmash     10 
19. Muriel Barton  Feinberg  Louis 6 
20. Florence Beck  Craig  Julius 7 
21. Mary  Berng  Berng  Thomas 5 
22. Thomas Berng     5 
23. Hans Besmer Beverly  Feinberg  11 
24. Maxine Blum  Kaplan  Herbert 10 
25. Rexhop Bobi Sharon  Rice  20 
26. Sofia  Bobi     26 
27. Ndidi Bonique  Feinberg  Adam 30 
28. Annie Bosley   Feinberg  George 6 
29. Alice Brams  Brams  Matthew 18 
30. Andrew Brams     18 
31. Craig Brams Sloan    18 
32. Eugene Brams Patricia  Craig  12 
33. Evan Brams     28 
34. Jolie Brams     18 
35. Matthew Brams      18 
36. Sloan Brams  Brams  Craig 18 
37. ? Brenner     25 
38. Jane Brenner     25 
39. Myron Brenner Diane  Pomerantz  17 
40. Cynia Brown  Shimm  Buddy 8 
41. Emilie Brown     26 
42. Kenneth Brown Janna    Peskin  20 
43. Logan Brown     26 
44. Matthew Brown     26 
45. Seth Brown     26 
46. Carmen Canchola  Shimm  David 15 
47. Cary Caramanica Susan  Arnell  26 
48. Robert Castle Iva  Lane  12 
49. Joyce Charlip  Golding  Philip 9 
50. Adolph  Chernack Pauline  Hutt  4 
51. ? Cohen Marsha  Feinberg  11 
52. David  Cohen Linda  Golding  14 
53. Ethan Cohen     27 
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First Name Last Name Wife's 
Name 

Married Name  Family Name Husband’s 
Name 

Page 
 No. 

54. Jeffrey Cohen     20 
55. Judah Cohen     30 
56. Micha Cohen     30 
57. Michael Cohen     20 
58. Randall Cohen     20 
59. Shira Cohen     27 
60. Robert  Conklin Judy  Rice  14 
61. Sharon Conklin  Bobi   Rexhop 20 
62. Susan  Conklin  Delphin  Robert 20 
63. Arthur Craig     13 
64. Elizabeth Craig  Craig  George 7 
65. Florence Craig  Van Edsinga   7 
66. George Craig     7 
67. Jason Craig     19 
68. Julius  Craig     7 
69. Louis Craig     3 
70. Patricia Craig  Brams   12 
71. Sanford Craig     7 
72. Carlos Crespo Pamela  Feinberg  25 
73. Mikhael Crespo     31 
74. Sarah Crespo     31 
75. Dana Crowe  Zedd  Barton 20 
76. Barthold             
-        (Bob) 

Delphin Susan  Conklin  20 

77. Grace Delphin     32 
78. Mel  Eisenberg Judy  Golding  13 
79. Doris Ellis  Feinberg  David 12 
80. Monique Endrody  Shimm  Peter 15 
81. Aaron Feinberg     31 
82. Adam Feinberg N’didi  Foy  30 
83. Alan Feinberg     12 
84. Arthur Feinberg     11 
85. Bernice Feinberg     11 
86. Beverly Feinberg     11 
87. Carol Feinberg     11 
88. Chloe  Feinberg     32 
89. Chloe Feinberg     32 
90. Daniel Feinberg     30 
91. Darleen Feinberg     11 
92. David Feinberg     12 
93. Eileen Feinberg     12 
94. Eleanore Feinberg  Lane  Thomas 6 
95. Emma Feinberg  Wallace  Willy 6 
96. Faye Feinberg  Feinberg  Alan 12 
97. Geoffrey Feinberg     32 
98. Geoffrey Feinberg     32 
99. George Feinberg     6 
100. Glenn Feinberg     28 
101. Harold Feinberg     6 
102. Herman Feinberg     6 
103. Ira Feinberg Andrea  Gorochow  28 
104. Israel Feinberg     3 
105. Jeffrey  Feinberg     25 
106. Judy Feinberg  Feinberg  Harold 12 
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First Name Last Name Wife's 
Name 

Married Name  Family Name Husband’s 
Name 

Page 
 No. 

107. Larry Feinberg     11 
108. Leonard Feinberg     12 
109. Leonard Feinberg     25 
110. Linda Feinberg     28 
111. Loretta Feinberg  Walters  Bill 6 
112. Louis Feinberg     6 
113. Marsha Feinberg     11 
114. Michael Feinberg     28 
115. Nicholas Feinberg     32 
116. Pamela Feinberg     25 
117. Roberta Feinberg     28 
118. Rose Feinberg  Richards  Barney 6 
119. Seth Feinberg     31 
120. Shayna Feinberg     31 
121. Shirley Feinberg  Inker  Abe 6 
122. Steven Feinberg     12 
123. Willy Feinberg     6 
124. Zachery Feinberg     31 
125. f Feldman     17 
126. Harry Feldman Leona  Kaplan  10 
127. m Feldman     17 
128. m Feldman     17 
129. Frances Finn  Feinberg  George 6 
130. Celia  Fleder  Golding  George 7 
131. Arnold Freedman Judy  Golding  13 
132. Edward Freedman     19 
133. Emily Freedman     30 
134. Jake Freedman     27 
135. Jonathan Freedman     30 
136. Jordan Freedman     27 
137. Mark Freedman     19 
138. Steven  Freedman     19 
139. Susan Freedman  Ambers   19 
140. Eleanore Getzler  Feinberg  Arthur 11 
141. Benjamin  Ginsberg Sara Rifka  Reyentowitz  2 
142. Dora Ginsberg  Kaplan   5 
143. Fannie Ginsberg  Kaplan   5 
144. Rose Ginsberg  Hutt   45 
145. Millie Glatman  Shimm  Abe 3 
146. Aby Golding     4 
147. Annette Golding  Posner  Murray 7 
148. Belinda Golding  Schwartz   19 
149. Edith Golding  Marcus   4 
150. Elizabeth Golding     17 
151. George Golding Celia    7 
152. Jack Golding     4 
153. Joshua Golding     19 
154. Judith Golding  Freedman  Arnold 13 
155. Judith Golding  Zedd   14 
156. Julius Golding Annie    3 
157. Laurence Golding     17 
158. Linda Golding  Cohen   14 
159. Louis Golding     4 
160. Martin Golding Naomi    13 
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First Name Last Name Wife's 
Name 

Married Name  Family Name Husband’s 
Name 

Page 
 No. 

161. May Golding  Rice  Norman 7 
162. Nathaniel Golding     29 
163. Philip Golding Necha  Reyentowitz  2 
164. Philip Golding Joyce    9 
165. Rafael Golding     29 
166. Rebecca Golding     29 
167. Rita Golding  Pomerantz   9 
168. Samuel Golding     29 
169. Sandra Golding  Peskin   14 
170. Sarah Golding  Goldstone   4 
171. Shulamith Golding  Klein   19 
172. Sidney Golding     7 
173. Tina Golding  Golding  Laurence 17 
174. Vanessa Golding     29 
175. Anthony Goldstone     16 
176. Edith Goldstone  Goldstone  Norman 9 
177. Iris Goldstone  Gould   16 
178. Nettie Goldstone     9 
179. Norman Goldstone     9 
180. Phillip Goldstone     16 
181. Phyllis Goldstone  Goldstone Goldstone Sidney 9 
182. Rubin Goldstone Sarah  Golding  4 
183. Sidney Goldstone     9 
184. Sonny Goldstone     9 
185. Andrea Gorochow  Feinberg  Ira 28 
186. Neil Gottlieb Bonnie  Allan  24 
187. Ruth Gottlieb  Shimm  Morton 8 
188. Clive Gould     29 
189. David Gould Iris  Goldstone  16 
190. Vivian Gould  Green   29 
191. Barbara  Gray  Mandel   14 
192. Larry Gray     14 
193. Mac Gray Edna  Shimm  8 
194. Marc Jos Gray     22 
195. Dan Green Vivian  Gould  29 
196. Nathan Greenberg Nettie  Shimm  3 
197. Michele  Greenblatt  Schoenberg  Robert 21 
198. Joe Gross Frances  Marcus  8 
199. Ada Gustav  Hutt  Nat 4 
200. Jinnie Gustav  Golding  Aby 4 
201. Harry Handin Dora  Shimm  3 
202. David Helman Eileen  Lewis  28 
203. Pat Henderson  Shimm  Bobby 8 
204. Esther                
.        Ann 

Herschman  Rechtschafner   16 

205. Oscar  Herschman Nettie  Marcus  8 
206. Ann  Hirschfield  Levine   18 
207. David  Hirschfield Charlotte  Posner  13 
208. Susan  Hirschfield  Alvino   18 
209. Rose Hochberg  Marcus  Norman 8 
210. Naomi Holtzman  Golding  Martin 13 
211. Abe Hutt     4 
212. Ben Hutt     45 
213. Bessie Hutt  Barmash   4 
214. Betty Hutt     10 
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First Name Last Name Wife's 
Name 

Married Name  Family Name Husband’s 
Name 

Page 
 No. 

215. Bobby Hutt     9 
216. Helene Hutt  Arnell   10 
217. Herschel Hutt Necha  Reyentowitz  2 
218. Martha Hutt     9 
219. Max Hutt     4 
220. Morris Hutt     4 
221. Nat Hutt     4 
222. Pauline Hutt  Sasslow   4 
223. Rose Hutt   Hutt Max 4 
224. Sadie Hutt  Hutt  Morris 4 
225. Sarah Hutt     4 
226. Sidney Hutt     10 
227. Avital Ingram     29 
228. Jacob Ingram Idit  Rechtschafner  21 
229. Renat Ingram     29 
230. Tehila Ingram     29 
231. Yael Ingram     29 
232. Yonaton Ingram     29 
233. Zuria Ingram     29 
234. Abe Inker Shirley  Feinberg  6 
235. Benjamin Inker     24 
236. Jennifer Inker     24 
237. Judy Inker  Inker  Leonard 11 
238. Leonard Inker     11 
239. Amy  Jacobson  Feinberg  Larry 11 
240. Adam Kanter Stephanie  Shimm  23 
241. Rebecca Kanter     30 
242. Caroline Kaplan     18 
243. Frank Kaplan Dora  Ginsberg  5 
244. Herbert Kaplan     10 
245. Jack Kaplan Fannie  Ginsberg  5 
246. Leona Kaplan  Feldman   10 
247. Michael Kaplan     18 
248. Norman Kaplan     10 
249. Fannie Kass  Feinberg  Israel 3 
250. Jonathan Klein Shulamith  Golding  19 
251. Ann Krensky     5 
252. Harry Krensky Judith  Reyentowitz  3 
253. Jennie Krensky     5 
254. m Krensky     5 
255. Mildred Krensky     5 
256. Sidney Krensky     5 
257. Diane Lagonegro  Marcus  Mark 16 
258. Iva Lane     12 
259. Thomas Lane Elinore  Feinberg  6 
260. Jeffrey Lapp Mara  Peskin  20 
261. Robyn Lapp  Cohen  Randall 20 
262. Marvin Lerner Bernice  Feinberg  11 
263. Amy Levine     25 
264. Harriet Levine  Lewis  Michael 28 
265. Mitchell Levine Ann  Hirschfield  18 
266. Adam Levy     23 
267. David Levy     23 
268. Jack Levy Doreen  Shimm  15 
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First Name Last Name Wife's 
Name 

Married Name  Family Name Husband’s 
Name 

Page 
 No. 

269. Annie  Lewis     31 
270. Debbie Lewis     31 
271. Eileen Lewis     28 
272. Frank Lewis Bernice  Feinberg  11 
273. Michael Lewis     28 
274. Mildred Lewis  Golding  Sidney 7 
275. Raschel Lewis     28 
276. Judy Lichterstein   Feinberg  Harold 6 
277. Lisa Lightner  Freedman  Edward 27 
278. f Lipkind     15 
279. Harry  Lipkind Tina  Mazer  6 
280. m Lipkind     15 
281. Helen Lucas  Gray  Larry 14 
282. Mollie  Lustig  Feinberg  Herman 6 
283. ? Maibach  Feinberg  Israel 3 
284. Amy Mandel     22 
285. Richard Mandel Barbara  Grey  14 
286. Scott Mandel     22 
287. Adam Marcus     22 
288. Daniel Marcus     16 
289. David Marcus     22 
290. Frances Marcus  Gross   8 
291. Jack Marcus     16 
292. Jessica Marcus     22 
293. Lionel Marcus     8 
294. Mark Marcus     16 
295. Marsha Marcus  Partridge   16 
296. Michele Marcus     22 
297. Nettie Marcus  Hirschman  Oscar 8 
298. Norman Marcus     8 
299. Sharon Marcus     22 
300. Stephanie Marcus     25 
301. Zach  Marcus Edith  Golding  4 
302. ? Mazer Sarah  Reyentowitz  3 
303. f Mazer     6 
304. Sam Mazer     6 
305. Sophie Mazer     6 
306. Tina Mazer  Lipkind   6 
307. Ian Moss Beverly  Feinberg  11 
308. Alice Nao  Bram  Matthew 28 
309. Aaron Noveshen Amy  Shimm  15 
310. Allison Partridge     21 
311. Jonathan Partridge     21 
312. Lon Partridge Marsha  Marcus  16 
313. Howard Peskin Sandra  Golding  14 
314. Janna  Peskin  Brown    20 
315. Logan Peskin     26 
316. Mara Peskin     20 
317. Jennifer Pofsky  Freedman  Mark 19 
318. Ayala Pollack  Golding  Joshua 19 
319. Diane Pomerantz  Pomerantz  Leslie 17 
320. Leslie Pomerantz     17 
321. Lisa Pomerantz     22 
322. Martin  Pomerantz Rita  Golding  9 
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First Name Last Name Wife's 
Name 

Married Name  Family Name Husband’s 
Name 

Page 
 No. 

323. Charlotte Posner  Hirschfield   13 
324. Judd Posner     13 
325. Murray Posner Annette  Golding  7 
326. Daniel Prigozin     27 
327. Yonaton Prigozin     27 
328. Zachary Prigozin Ayelet  Rechtschafner  21 
329. Ayelet Rechtschafner  Prigozin  Zachery 21 
330. Daniel Rechtschafner     27 
331. Doriah Rechtschafner     21 
332. Idit Rechtschafner  Ingram  Jacob 21 
333. Mordecai Rechtschafner Esther 

Anne 
 Hirschman  16 

334. ? Reisman  Barmash  Rae 10 
335. Aryeh Reyentowitz     2 
336. Judith Reyentowitz  Krensky   3 
337. Mamie Reyentowitz  Rosenbloom   3 
338. Monash Reyentowitz     2 
339. Necha Reyentowitz  Golding  Philip 2 
340. Necha Reyentowitz  Hutt  Herschel 2 
341. Rachel Reyentowitz  Reyentowitz  Monash 2 
342. Sarah Reyentowitz  Mazer   3 
343. Sarah      
Rifka 

Reyentowitz  Ginsberg  Benjamin 2 

344. Shifra Reyentowitz     2 
345. Shmuel Reyentowitz     2 
346. Tybe Reyentowitz  Rubin   3 
347. Yehuda Reyentowitz     2 
348. Betty Rice  Schoenberg   14 
349. Judy Rice  Conklin   14 
350. Norman Rice May  Golding  7 
351. Barney Richards Rose  Feinberg  6 
352. Julie Richards     24 
353. Michael Richards     24 
354. Pat Richards  Richards  Roland 11 
355. Roland Richards     11 
356. Kevin Rosen Stacey  Shimm  23 
357. m Rosenberg Martha  Hutt  9 
358. Sadie Rosenblatt  Shimm  Joe 3 
359. m Rosenbloom     5 
360. Mildred Rosenbloom     5 
361. Morris  Rosenbloom Mamie  Reyentowitz  3 
362. Sam Rosenbloom     5 
363. ? Rubin Tybe  Reyentowitz  3 
364. Jody Rubin  Cohen  Jeffrey 20 
365. Julius Rubin     5 
366. Sam Rubin     5 
367. Jeannette Salkin  Marcus  Lionel 8 
368. Sam Sasslow Pauline  Hutt  4 
369. Susan Scarpulla  Shimm  Steven 14 
370. Dorothy Schoen  Shimm  George 8 
371. Emily Schoenberg     32 
372. Lisa Schoenberg     21 
373. Matthew Schoenberg     32 
374. Robert Schoenberg     21 
375. Steven Schoenberg Betty  Rice  14 
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First Name Last Name Wife's 
Name 

Married Name  Family Name Husband’s 
Name 

Page 
 No. 

376. Carole Schwartz  Feinberg  Ira 28 
377. Jake  Schwartz     255 
378. Max Schwartz     25 
379. Victor Schwartz Belinda  Golding  19 
380. David Sendler Emily  Shimm  15 
381. Karen Sendler     23 
382. Mark Sendler     23 
383. Matthew Sendler     23 
384. ? Shimm     14 
385. Abe Shimm     3 
386. Alexander Shimm     26 
387. Alexander Shimm     32 
388. Amy Shimm     15 
389. Andrew Shimm     30 
390. Annie Shimm  Golding  Julius 3 
391. Avram Shimm     26 
392. Avram Shimm     32 
393. David Shimm     15 
394. Dora Shimm  Handon   3 
395. Doreen Shimm     15 
396. Edna Shimm  Gray   8 
397. Emily Shimm  Sendler   15 
398. George Shimm     8 
399. Joe Shimm     3 
400. Joey Shimm     15 
401. Jon Shimm     15 
402. Judith Shimm     23 
403. Kenneth Shimm Roberta    14 
404. Kenneth Shimm     30 
405. Louis Shimm     2 
406. Mark Shimm     15 
407. Melvin Shimm     8 
408. Morton Shimm     8 
409. Nettie Shimm  Greenberg   3 
410. Peter Shimm     15 
411. Remy Shimm     31 
412. Robert Shimm     8 
413. Sarah Shimm  Craig   3 
414. Stacey Shimm     23 
415. Stephanie Shimm     23 
416. Steven Shimm     14 
417. Yoko Shimm  Shimm  Joey 15 
418. Caroline Silverman  Feinberg  Willy 6 
419. Jeffrey Smith     24 
420. Mark Smith     24 
421. Victor Smith Carol  Feinberg  11 
422. Sylvia Smolenski  Marcus  Jack 16 
423. Sloan Sonnenfeld   Brams Craig 18 
424. Bruce Steckler Deborah  Warren  27 
425. Daniel Steckler     27 
426. Sophia Steckler     28 
427. Sarah Stone  Craig  Sanford 7 
428. Corbet Storyk     23 
429. John Storyk Beth  Walters  11 
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First Name Last Name Wife's 
Name 

Married Name  Family Name Husband’s 
Name 

Page 
 No. 

430. Kory Storyk     23 
431. Ida Tsirilstein  Shimm  Louis 2 
432. Necha Tsirilstein  Reyentowitz  Yehuda 2 
433. Charles VanEdsinga Florence  Craig  7 
434. Sheila Vellone  Allan  Glen 24 
435. ? Verowitz  Feinberg  Israel 3 
436. Sharon Wachtel  Craig  Arthur 12 
437. Willy Wallace     6 
438. Beth Walters  Storyk   11 
439. Bill Walters Loretta  Feinberg  6 
440. Deborah Warren  Steckler   27 
441. Leslie Warren     27 
442. Michael Warren Darlene  Feinberg  11 
443. Robert Warren     27 
444. Roberta Wasserman  Shimm  Kenneth 14 
445. Annie Weintraub  Golding  Louis 4 
446. Gary Weiss     17 
447. Judith Willingham  Shimm  Jon 15 
448. Linda Winbarn  Shimm  David 15 
449. John Wright Beth  Walters  11 
450. Keaton Wright     23 
451. Barton Zedd     20 
452. Eliot Zedd     28 
453. Gordon Zedd     20 
454. Jacob Zedd     28 
455. Michael Zedd     28 
456. Ronald Zedd Judy B.  Golding  14 
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